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P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S1

(9:44 a.m.)2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good morning, ladies3

and gentlemen. I will call this -- my goodness, is it4

March already? -- 25 March 2003 hearing to order and5

welcome everybody this morning.6

This is, of course, the District of7

Columbia's Board of Zoning Adjustments. My name is8

Geoff Griffis, I am Chairperson. With me today is the9

Vice Chair, Ms. Anne Renshaw. Also joining me is Mr.10

Etherly, and representing the National Capital11

Planning Commission, Mr. Zaidan, and we will have a12

Zoning Commissioner with us shortly, we do hope.13

You should all feel honored joining us14

this morning because we have somewhat of a milestone15

here. It is both positive, I think, and also16

saddening, but this is our last day with Ms. Renshaw17

sitting on the Board, and we do celebrate a great18

tenure and service to this city by Ms. Renshaw and we19

look forward to her, as we have come to rely upon,20

great discussion, discourse and strong opinions.21

With that, let me also just say we do have22

copies of today's agenda. That item will not be on23

the agenda, which is why I brought it to your24

attention. The agendas are on the table where you25
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entered into the hearing room. It looks like there1

are plenty available at this point.2

Also, please be aware that all proceedings3

and public hearings before the Board of Zoning4

Adjustment are recorded. That means several things to5

you. First of all, when coming to speak to the Board,6

you will need to come forward, sit down, be7

comfortable, and speak into a microphone. That8

microphone should be on. Also, prior to sitting down,9

you need to fill out two witness cards. Witness cards10

are available on the table in front of us, also on the11

table where you entered into the hearing room. Those12

witness cards go to the recorder, who is sitting to my13

right.14

The order of today's special exceptions15

and variances will be: First we will have statement16

and witnesses of the applicant; second, we will have17

all government reports attendant to the application;18

third, we will have the report from the Advisory19

Neighborhood Commission; fourth would be parties or20

persons in support of the application; fifth would be21

parties and persons in opposition to the application;22

and sixth, we will have closing remarks by the23

applicant.24

Cross-examination of witnesses is25
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permitted by the applicant and parties in the case.1

The ANC within which the property is located is2

automatically a party in all cases.3

The record will be closed at the4

conclusion of each case except for any material that5

this Board requests. We will be very specific on the6

material requested and specific on when that material7

should be submitted into the Office of Zoning. After8

that material is received, of course, it goes without9

saying that the record would then be closed and no10

other information would be accepted.11

The Sunshine Act requires that public12

hearings on each case be held in the open and before13

the public. This Board may, however, consistent with14

its rules of procedure and the Sunshine Act, enter15

executive session during or after a hearing on a case16

in order to deliberate or review the record.17

Decisions of this Board in contested cases must be18

based exclusively on the public record, and therefore19

we ask people present today not engage Board members20

in conversations so that we do not give the appearance21

of the contrary.22

I believe we can now look to any23

preliminary matters before us in this morning's24

session. Preliminary matters are those which relate25
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to whether a case will or should be heard today, such1

as requests for postponements, continuances or2

withdrawal, or whether proper and adequate notice of3

the case has been given.4

If you are not prepared to go forward with5

a case today or if you believe the Board should not6

proceed with a case, now is the time to approach and7

have a seat, which will indicate you have a8

preliminary matter before the Board.9

Let me also wish a great good morning to10

Ms. Bailey from the Office of Zoning, also Mr. Moy,11

who is with us. Sitting on my far right representing12

the Corporation Counsel is Ms. Monroe. Good morning,13

Ms. Bailey.14

Do you have any preliminary matters?15

PRELIMINARY MATTERS16

MS. BAILEY: Mr. Chairman, members of the17

Board, good morning.18

Mr. Chairman, the only preliminary matter19

I was told about is the reversal of the order of the20

cases. The first two cases will be reversed.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good. Yes. I would22

like to call the Dornburg case first, and then we will23

go to Block, which is 16996, and then third we will24

hear from the application of U.S. Property Development25
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Corp., 16999, as long as the Dornburg representatives1

are here.2

MS. BAILEY: Should I call the case now,3

Mr. Chairman?4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Are the representatives5

of Application 16997 present, ready to go? Very well.6

Absolutely, Ms. Bailey. Thank you.7

APPLICATION OF KIMIKO W. DORNBURG8

16997 ANC-3C9

MS. BAILEY: Application 16997 of Kimiko10

W. Dornburg pursuant to 11 DCMR 3104.1, for a special11

exception to allow a one-story rear addition to a row12

dwelling under section 223, not meeting the side yard13

requirements and the nonconforming structure14

provisions. The property is located in the R-1-B15

District at premises 3312 Cathedral Avenue, Northwest,16

Square 2118, Lot 38.17

Please stand to take the oath.18

(Witnesses sworn.)19

MS. BAILEY: Please have a seat at the20

table.21

Mr. Chairman, there is a -- the posting of22

the property -- if I can invite your attention to23

Exhibit Number 31, from looking at the affidavit, it24

appears as if the date -- that the property was25
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properly posted based on the date, but I understand1

that it was not, so that does need to be discussed,2

Mr. Chairman.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Why don't4

we discuss that, then? What is the situation?5

MR. WENTWORTH: My name is Bruce6

Wentworth. This is Kevin Winkler. We're with7

Wentworth-Levine Architect-Builder, and we're here to8

represent Mrs. Dornburg.9

The property was properly posted and10

regretfully it was a little bit late.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: It was properly, but12

late.13

MR. WENTWORTH: It was posted, but it was14

late.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. How late?16

MR. WENTWORTH: On the 19th, which --17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: When was it supposed to18

be posted?19

MR. WENTWORTH: The 10th.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So nine days late? And21

is there a reason for that?22

MR. WENTWORTH: Just a terrible mistake.23

We thought it was going to be taken care of, and it24

wasn't. We hope that, with the inclusion of the ANC25
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support and also letters of support from her neighbors1

as well as the 200-foot-radius posting of the meeting,2

would hopefully be enough for --3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. And clearly4

those are also important aspects.5

Posting of the property we hold very6

seriously because it is certainly more public, more7

visible, of course, and it does give great attention8

to people walking by, and the announcement -- we have9

found most people may not open letters that might be10

served.11

When did you present to the ANC-3C?12

MR. WENTWORTH: It was -- should be about13

a month ago.14

MR. WINKLER: February 25th, I think it15

was.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: February 25th?17

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: February 24th,18

says ANC-3C's letter.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Thank you. And20

then when did you first make contact with them?21

MR. WENTWORTH: Make contact with the ANC?22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. When did you let23

them know that this was happening, you were bringing a24

forum, get on the schedule?25
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MR. WENTWORTH: Much before that.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. So probably2

January?3

MR. WENTWORTH: Probably, yes.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.5

Board members, comments?6

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: There doesn't7

seem to be any complaint about this, Mr. Chair.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Indeed. So you are9

willing to waive the requirement for posting?10

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Yes.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good morning, Mr.12

Parsons. Welcome.13

Okay. There it is. You had one token;14

it's now used; you will never see this again; is that15

correct? Thank you very much.16

And in all seriousness, it is a very17

important factor, of course, in how this public18

process is announced, and worse, you could have had19

people coming in here saying, "Gosh, we didn't even20

know about it," asking for a continuance. That just21

makes it problematic for you, but more importantly,22

problematic for us because it would disrupt our23

schedule.24

That being said, I take it there is25
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consensus, unless I hear any opposition, that we can1

waive the requirements for posting as it was nine days2

late. Good. In which case, let's turn it over to you3

folks, and you can begin your presentation.4

MR. WENTWORTH: We are seeking a special5

exception. This is a townhouse that was built in the6

1920s. We want to build a rear addition to it. It's7

in a single-family zone. The two adjacent houses have8

rear additions already. I will show you the property9

here.10

This is Cathedral Avenue. This is the11

front yard with the --12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: If you can pull a13

microphone just closer to you. You can pick that up,14

probably, and hold it.15

MR. WENTWORTH: All right. As you can see16

on the drawing, this is Cathedral Avenue, this is the17

front yard with the building restriction line, this is18

the existing house here in white, and you can see in19

the hatched area, this is where we're proposing to20

build the addition.21

There is a current driveway into a garage22

here. We are not covering that in any way. The23

adjacent townhouse comes back to this dark line that24

you can see here, and I have a photograph that I can25
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show you that they previously built an addition here.1

The townhouse to the west also has an addition that2

jogs back here.3

So that is the current condition.4

This is the photograph of the rear of the5

property. The neighbor to the east has built out to6

this line, which is where we will also be building,7

and Mrs. Dornburg's property goes all the way over to8

here. This is the driveway where the little red car9

is parked that goes to the garage, and our addition10

will essentially fill in this one-story piece here.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What is the additional12

line with the other adjacent property?13

MR. WENTWORTH: I think it comes out just14

a little bit beyond this.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And you have a16

letter of support from that property member?17

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes, sir.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And talk about19

materials that are going on. I understand that it's a20

--21

MR. WENTWORTH: This is not a historic22

district.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes, but we still like24

materials.25
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MR. WENTWORTH: All right. Here is the1

existing garage, and this piece here is the addition.2

This will be at the basement level with small3

windows, and this will be her new dining room, and4

this will have a parapet across here. This is the5

neighbor's brick wall.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: The addition, materials7

on the addition.8

MR. WENTWORTH: Oh, I'm sorry. This is9

called Hardy Plank. It's a stucco-like material.10

It's incombustible. And wood trim. So it's a brick11

and stucco-like structure.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. Okay. So it13

will read as somewhat of a masonry type, --14

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- not brick. Okay.16

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Does Hardy17

Plank look like the neighbor's addition?18

MR. WENTWORTH: No.19

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: That's not what20

--21

MR. WENTWORTH: The neighbor's addition22

actually looks -- it's wood paneling. This is a23

masonry material.24

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: And plank is25
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not paneling.1

MR. WENTWORTH: Plank is paneling, but not2

--3

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: But not that.4

MR. WENTWORTH: I mean, you can change the5

type of material. The neighbor's house has a wood6

siding that has never been properly treated and it has7

turned that funny color.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's not the antique9

look?10

MR. WENTWORTH: No.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.12

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: It looks like13

it.14

MR. WENTWORTH: At the basement level, we15

are doing a full basement here. This will just be a16

storage room, and this door will exit to the driveway.17

So that's simply a storage room that expands her18

basement.19

At the first floor level, we have created20

a powder room with a rear exit to the yard. This is a21

skylight above a little vestibule that transitions22

into her dining room, so she will be able to have23

proper dinner parties here.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. Without going25
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too much into the interiors where nothing is1

compelling us to get there yet, why don't you just2

walk through the tests under 223. Clearly -- well,3

what I would like to hear is just your comment on4

whether light and air is available or properties are5

affected or unduly affected; privacy in use, is there6

any disruption to that.7

MR. WENTWORTH: Certainly. Currently the8

neighbor to the east has a masonry firewall here. We9

are building up against that, so that in no way does10

it impinge upon his property.11

At the west, we are not building all the12

way to the property line, we are holding it back at13

the site of the driveway. So this property is not14

really affected in any way at all.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And you have a16

letter of support from both neighbors which indicates17

that they don't view that as any difficulty, either?18

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes, sir.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That would go to the20

privacy, use, enjoyment of their properties also,21

correct?22

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes, correct.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And I think it24

goes without saying, looking at the photographs and25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

18

the documents submitted, that the addition is not1

visually intruding from the street. I don't think you2

can see it at all, frankly, right? Okay.3

MR. WENTWORTH: Not from the street.4

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Mr. Chair, I have a5

question.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.7

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Just to make sure I'm8

clear, the addition will be along this brick wall; is9

that correct?10

MR. WENTWORTH: That's correct.11

MEMBER ZAIDAN: On the west side is where12

the 9.9 setback would be for the addition?13

MR. WENTWORTH: That's correct.14

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Just want to make sure I15

understand. It's hard to get a perception of depth16

from this.17

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: The picture18

shows a fence. Is the fence going to remain in the19

alley?20

MR. WENTWORTH: No. The fence will come21

down.22

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Okay.23

MR. WENTWORTH: We're going to actually24

re-landscape the back part.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Mr. Zaidan, if you look1

at CS in the submitted plan sheets, it does indicate2

the adjacent wall.3

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Which sheet is that?4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: CS. It's actually the5

cover sheet and it's the plat that they have drawn on.6

It gives the relationship. Can you see it there?7

It's labelled "Face On Line Wall."8

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Yes, "Face On Line Wall,9

One-Hour Rated."10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. That appears to11

be the new --12

MEMBER ZAIDAN: That's the new13

construction.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- wall that's going to15

abut the existing brick.16

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So if you see past that18

line to the second, it essentially lines up.19

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay. Yes. And then it20

looks like it may come out a little bit farther than21

the neighbor's addition, maybe not even a foot, it22

looks like.23

MR. WENTWORTH: Three inches beyond the24

adjacent wall.25
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MEMBER ZAIDAN: Three inches. Okay.1

I guess the one question I have is, and I2

don't think it changes the test or what we're looking3

at, but I remember reading in one of the reports, and4

maybe it was OP's, that this structure will now be5

considered to have a 9.9 yard setback, side yard6

setback. I don't think that's correct. If this is7

the addition, I mean, I mean, it will still have -- I8

mean, if the existing structure has no setback, the9

addition wouldn't change that. Just because the back10

is set back 9.9 feet, it doesn't mean that the11

structure now has a 9.9 side yard setback.12

MR. WENTWORTH: Eight feet is the normal13

side yard.14

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right.15

MR. WENTWORTH: So we're greater than that16

on the west.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What you're saying is,18

with the addition, do you create a side yard or do you19

actually create a court?20

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right. It would be my21

opinion it's not a side yard. Like I said, it doesn't22

change the test; I just don't think that I would say23

that this structure now has a 9.9 side yard setback24

because the existing structure has no setback on the25
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side yard. It's almost a court creation.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, it does actually2

-- the existing structure does setback that, and they3

are aligning it with the addition.4

Ms. Monroe, how would you categorize the5

existing -- the area where the existing drive is?6

MS. MONROE: I think Mr. Zaidan actually7

is right. If you read the definition of yard, it says8

extending for the full depth of the building or9

structure.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.11

MS. MONROE: And since this doesn't extend12

all the way, you know, on the side of the original13

building, it would be more of a court. But because14

we're under 223, special exception, I think it would15

all fall under the 223 analysis.16

MEMBER ZAIDAN: I don't think it changes17

the relief; I just think --18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.19

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Fair enough.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good point. You made21

them a little nervous. I think we can move on.22

MEMBER ZAIDAN: I'm trying to keep things23

exciting, Mr. Chairman.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's what it's all25
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about.1

Any other questions for the applicant?2

Any clarifications? Does everyone understand3

completely what we're doing here?4

Very well. 223.4, of course, gives us the5

jurisdiction to require anything, but mostly related6

to design and treatment and materials. I think it's7

an excellent choice by the designer to pick this type8

of material that will match the adjacent buildings and9

the existing building in terms of the brick. It's10

certainly better than vinyl siding, which we see too11

much of.12

That being said, lighting and all that is13

I don't think of any major concern. There are light14

fixtures showing. Of course, the building code would15

require and I don't think there has been any evidence16

or anything that we can see in the record that would17

require us to go deep into those issues.18

So with that, if there are no other19

questions from the Board, we can move on and go to the20

Office of Planning and hear their report, and wish you21

good morning.22

REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF PLANNING23

BY JOEL LAWSON24

MR. LAWSON: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,25
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members of the Board.1

I don't believe I have anything to add to2

the report. I will let the report stand and be3

available for questions.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent. I5

appreciate that.6

Any questions from the Board regarding the7

Office of Planning's report?8

MS. BAILEY: No questions, Mr. Chairman. I9

would just ask the Office of Planning's representative10

to identify himself.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Oh, yes. Indeed.12

MR. LAWSON: I'm sorry. I'm Joel Lawson,13

Develop Review Specialist with the Office of Planning.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you.15

Ms. Renshaw.16

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Yes. On page17

3, the Office of Planning states that it has no18

recommendation for special treatment at this time, but19

notes that some screening hedge or well-designed fence20

along the rear lot line would help to decrease the21

scale of the house as seen from the alley. Do you22

have any further thoughts about that? Was this23

discussed with the architects?24

MR. LAWSON: This was not discussed with25
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the architects. It was basically a comment that we1

felt could be made to the architects for their2

information more than anything else. As the report3

states, we feel that the addition will be certainly4

acceptable on this lane-way. The house -- the three5

townhouses in a row, actually, do have a fairly large6

presence on the lane-way, and we felt that some7

screening, some hedging, which they are probably8

considering anyway to provide privacy for the rear9

yard, would be of benefit.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: On that, let me get11

some clarification. You have an alley that's running12

perpendicular to Cathedral, and then there is -- what13

runs parallel to Cathedral at the rear abutting the --14

MR. WENTWORTH: This is actually a private15

alley that is owned by these homeowners.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. And that was17

stated in here, correct?18

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.20

MR. WENTWORTH: This narrow strip here21

belongs to Mrs. Dornburg.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.23

MR. WENTWORTH: And the next strip is24

owned by the person to the west.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. So it's their1

access into the alley.2

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: To the alley. Is it4

paved?5

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.7

MR. WENTWORTH: With asphalt.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And is there any9

delineation between what she owns and the other10

portion?11

MR. WENTWORTH: No. No. It looks like12

it's a public alley, but it's, in fact, private.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. So you could14

conceivably set a tollbooth there and charge fare?15

MR. WENTWORTH: True, we could. But we16

will be landscaping this area here, so if we were to17

plant a hedge, for example, it would be right about18

there. I suspect after this addition is built, she19

will begin to focus on this garden area.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. What is across21

the private drive?22

MR. WENTWORTH: There is another house23

over here.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: In the setback there25
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roughly, rear yard?1

MR. WENTWORTH: I don't know.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I mean, is it right on3

the property line? Is it ten feet?4

MR. WENTWORTH: No. It's set back.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Twenty feet?6

MR. WENTWORTH: I don't know.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. All right.8

Well, I think it's an excellent comment and I think9

they can take it under advisement. I think, frankly,10

once that addition is done, it may be well worth11

taking some time to get a sense of how that feels and12

then to see what's appropriate, whether it's a solid13

fence or, in fact, whether that makes it a little bit14

more claustrophobic back there, or whether it's a15

hedge of some sort. Okay. Good question, Ms.16

Renshaw.17

Others? Any other question from the Board18

for the Office of Planning?19

(No response.)20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Does the applicant have21

any questions, cross-examination of the Office of22

Planning?23

MR. WENTWORTH: No, sir.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Do you have the report?25
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Did you receive the report, Office of Planning's1

report?2

MR. WENTWORTH: Do we have the report?3

MR. WINKLER: I don't --4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Have you seen it? You5

read it?6

MR. WENTWORTH: I don't think so.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Oh, dear. Well, pick8

up a copy. It's an excellent report.9

Anything else, then?10

(No response.)11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Let's move12

on and take up -- we do have the ANC-3C; is that13

correct, Ms. Renshaw?14

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: It is a letter15

from ANC-3C dated February 25th and signed by Nancy16

McWood, the chair of ANC-3C, and she states that the17

ANC held a meeting on February 24th, 2003, a quorum18

was present and the Commission voted eight to nothing19

to endorse the special exception application for an20

addition to 3312 Cathedral Avenue. The owner of the21

property produced letters of support from all the22

adjacent neighbors.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you.24

That is all that I have noted for25
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government reports unless others are aware of or the1

applicant is aware of any other submissions from the2

government agencies?3

MR. WENTWORTH: No, sir.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.5

One clarification. The nonconformity of6

this is the fact that it's an attached house; is that7

correct? A row house?8

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes, it's a row house.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Do you know of any10

other nonconformities?11

MR. WENTWORTH: No.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And when was it13

built?14

MR. WENTWORTH: In the 1920s.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.16

MR. WENTWORTH: Zoning laws were passed in17

'58.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So we have become19

aware. Good. Let's move on, then, to -- is there any20

one here to give testimony either in support or21

opposition for Application 16997, Dornburg? Anyone22

here present, come forward at this time. If not,23

let's run through the written submissions.24

We have letters of support from: Exhibit25
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Number 27, Calloway; Exhibit Number 26, Alverez;1

Exhibit Number 24 is Skelly; and Exhibits 11 and 122

from Mendelshoens; and then we did have -- I believe I3

was just handed an additional submission, Exhibit 29.4

I wonder how this is different than Exhibit Number5

24. It's signed by R.J. Skelly, 3314 Cathedral. Are6

you aware of any other letters of opposition or7

support at this time? Submissions? No?8

MR. WINKLER: No, I don't.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. I think that10

about covers it. Good.11

Questions from the Board? Last questions?12

Clarifications?13

(No response.)14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Closing remarks?15

MR. WENTWORTH: No. Thank you very much.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you.17

Board members, I would move approval of18

Application 16997 of the Dornburg household for the19

special exception which would allow, as we have seen20

today, the one-story rear addition to the row21

dwelling. This does come under Section 223 as it is22

not meeting -- as it is a nonconforming structure23

located at 3312 Cathedral Avenue, Northwest, and I24

would ask for a second.25
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VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Second.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you very much,2

Ms. Renshaw.3

I think it has been clearly stated in the4

record and in the public comment today how it does, in5

fact, fall within the provisions of 223 and exactly6

what 223 was created for. Clearly there has been no7

evidence that any light and air or use would be8

obstructed or unduly affected. The visual aspect from9

the street, even if you could, I do not believe would10

intrude on the vision, but it is not, in fact, seen11

from the main street of Cathedral.12

Certainly all the submissions are in order13

as would be compliant with 223.2 as well as 223.3 with14

the lot occupancy. The treatment in terms of design15

screening and exterior lighting, I think we also went16

through that, although briefly. I think that the17

choice of materials and actually the detailing on the18

materials as shown in the plans is well suited for the19

existing structure and also for those adjacent20

structures in the row, and I believe that does21

substantiate, along with the ANC, which we give great22

weight, and the Office of Planning would support the23

motion to approve.24

Any other comments?25
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(No response.)1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Then I can2

ask for all those in favor of the motion signify by3

saying aye.4

(Chorus of ayes.)5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And opposed?6

(No response.)7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: We can record that8

vote.9

MS. BAILEY: The vote is recorded as five,10

zero, zero to approve the application. Mr. Griffis11

made the motion; Mrs. Renshaw second; Mr. Zaidan, Mr.12

Parsons and Mr. Etherly are in agreement.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good.14

MS. BAILEY: Summary order, Mr. Chairman?15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see no objection,16

unless the Board has any objection to a summary order.17

Applicant is okay with a summary order on this?18

MR. WENTWORTH: Yes. Please.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well.20

MR. WENTWORTH: Thank you.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I think that's22

appropriate. In which case, go have a great day.23

MR. WENTWORTH: Great.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: It looks like it's25
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going to be beautiful.1

MR. WENTWORTH: Thank you very much.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Let's move on. Before3

we call our next case, I know I overlooked this4

morning in my opening statement to ask everyone to5

turn off their cell phones and beepers, so we can do6

that as we will not disrupt any of the proceedings.7

With that, let us call 16996.8

APPLICATION OF MARTIN BLOCK9

16996 ANC-3G10

MS. BAILEY: Application of Martin Block11

pursuant to 11 DCMR 3104.1 for a special exception to12

allow an addition to an existing one-family dwelling13

under section 223. The property is located in the14

R-1-B District at premises 3348 Military Road,15

Northwest, Square 1991, Lot 35.16

Gentlemen, would you please raise your17

right hand to take the oath.18

(Witnesses sworn.)19

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Mr. Chairman?20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes, Ms. Renshaw.21

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: At this point,22

I should recuse myself. I have known of this case.23

It is in my single-member district. Mr. Block, the24

applicant, came before the ANC on March the 10th and25
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the ANC's report is in the record or is in your1

packet, in your file. As I voted at that point, I2

will not be voting and hearing the case at this end.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Thank you4

very much for that disclosure and we look forward to5

seeing you shortly. I would anticipate that we would6

call our third case in the morning at eleven o'clock.7

Okay. Gentlemen, if you would not mind8

introducing yourself for the record, and then I9

believe you can proceed.10

MR. BLOCK: I'm Marty Block. I'm the11

homeowner and applicant. I live at 3348 Military12

Road, Northwest.13

MR. OSSOLINSKI: I'm Matthew Ossolinski14

with Ossolinski Architects, and my address is 523215

44th Street, Northwest.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.17

MR. BLOCK: If I got the procedure right,18

we present and I guess we will be asked questions.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right, although I think20

you do have a preliminary matter for us, and that is,21

and we need to take it up, amending the application22

regarding the parking; is that correct?23

MR. BLOCK: Yes. I was going to ask when24

does that get here. But just for the record, I'm25
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extraordinarily nervous.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Oh.2

MR. BLOCK: Sorry.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, don't be.4

MR. BLOCK: Yes. It came to light last5

week from the Office of Planning that the parking6

place that we have used since we have owned the house7

for 13 years, and other neighbors use as well, is not8

considered to be -- is essentially part of the public9

space. It is not considered to be a parking pad.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right, because it --11

and it in fact goes beyond the building restriction12

line; is that correct?13

MR. BLOCK: Right. About 95 percent of it14

is beyond the building restriction line.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.16

MR. BLOCK: And we did a17

self-certification on this and we were not aware that18

something that existed and had been used -- we just19

were not aware of it, and so it came to light that we20

had to ask for a variance, and then I was advised by21

BZA staff that it's something that I could ask for22

here, although I -- I'm asking that you allow me to23

amend my application to include a variance under --24

for relief under Section 2116.6 to waive the25
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requirement for single parking space to be located on1

the property as described.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Let's have some3

quick background here and understanding of the4

property. Noted in the written submissions is the5

fact that the garage is of diminished size; is that6

correct?7

MR. BLOCK: That's correct.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What is the actual9

dimension?10

MR. OSSOLINSKI: The dimension of the11

parking space within the current garage is 7.6 wide by12

17 feet long. The current requirements are 9 by 19.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. Okay. Let me14

lay it all out here. It seems to me, in my thinking,15

in reviewing this, I'm not sure how we could grant a16

variance from a requirement because the existing is17

nonconforming and not -- and basically illegal. So if18

we have the substantiation of you having an illegal19

parking spot, but now we're requiring you to get a20

variance to replace that with a legal, that lends21

itself to some difficulty, in my mind, meaning you22

wouldn't get the parking variance.23

MR. BLOCK: We're not requesting a24

replacement; we're requesting it be waived.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: No, I understand that.1

But technically, you are.2

MR. BLOCK: Okay.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You have to have the4

replacement and then we grant you the relief from it.5

However -- well, Mr. Zaidan?6

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Well, just before you get7

into the conversation, can you point out the area8

we're talking about on your map here, just so I'm9

clear?10

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Certainly.11

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Just so I'm clear.12

MR. OSSOLINSKI: The existing parking13

garage --14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Can you pick up a15

microphone?16

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Oh, sure. Sorry.17

The existing parking garage you can see in18

the photograph here -- I think you all have it -- it's19

topped by an existing office area. It's located right20

here. Here is Nevada Avenue, Military. And the21

exterior dimensions are just under 10 feet by 20 feet.22

And when we take away the wall thickness, the chimney23

coming in, that's where we get the -- and the door --24

that's when we get the size of seven-foot-six.25
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MEMBER ZAIDAN: That's the usable space1

inside.2

MR. OSSOLINSKI: That's the usable space3

inside.4

MEMBER ZAIDAN: And that's in --5

MR. OSSOLINSKI: No, it's in our yard. It6

is in our yard. The lot line is here, but there is a7

building restriction line you can see that joins the8

--9

MEMBER ZAIDAN: For the setback, right.10

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Right there.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Oh, is that right? I'm12

mistakenly reading that, then. That's the property13

line that you're showing, but you're not indicating14

the building restriction line.15

MR. OSSOLINSKI: The building restriction16

line is indicated, but it's a little bit lighter.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.18

MR. OSSOLINSKI: It's over here.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And it actually clips20

the side of the garage?21

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Yes. No. No. The22

garage is within that.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. Right. I24

understand.25
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MR. OSSOLINSKI: But it does come close to1

the corner, yes.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Now do you have a3

legal-sized parking on the pad outside within the4

building restriction line?5

MR. OSSOLINSKI: No.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Oh. Okay.7

Mr. Zaidan, other questions?8

MEMBER ZAIDAN: To clarify, I just -- I9

got lost in the beginning because I thought you said10

that the garage in question or whatever it is was in11

public space, --12

MR. OSSOLINSKI: No.13

MEMBER ZAIDAN: -- which means that it was14

in the right of way or something. So I got lost.15

MR. OSSOLINSKI: No. It's within the16

building restriction line and obviously within the17

property.18

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay. And you are not,19

obviously, because of the usable space, you're not20

parking in it. There's no way.21

MR. BLOCK: Right. Bicycles, lawn mower,22

garden implements, stuff like that.23

MEMBER ZAIDAN: So you're kind of24

operating it as a shed.25
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MR. BLOCK: Correct.1

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Can you have3

some certification of the fact of -- the garage4

dimensions put into the record, that seven feet, six5

inches --6

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Sure. How would I do7

that?8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- by 17 feet? You9

could put together a quick dimension plan and sign it.10

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Okay.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Do you have that with12

you today?13

MR. OSSOLINSKI: I can do that on the back14

of an envelope.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What color envelope?16

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Whatever color the Chair17

wishes.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Here's what I'm trying19

to do, and I don't want to belabor this too long, but20

the fact of the matter is I see difficulty if we take21

this up as we have an illegal parking space and we're22

requiring a variance from the parking requirement23

rather than having this grandfathered, and I don't24

want to go into where I'm projecting we might have25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

40

difficulty. So specifically looking at this, I'm not1

sure how we can require a variance for something that2

doesn't really exist.3

MR. OSSOLINSKI: That's our position as4

well.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Let me hear from6

others, first of all if they understand, and then any7

disagreements or --8

MEMBER ZAIDAN: I tend to agree with you,9

Mr. Chair.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.11

MEMBER ZAIDAN: I mean, I'm curious to12

know if Corp Counsel has any issues with proceeding13

that way in terms of the grandfathering issue.14

MS. MONROE: No, I don't disagree. I15

don't think it's 100 percent clear and you might let16

them present the case in the alternative, make the17

case for the variance and then --18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What is not clear?19

MS. MONROE: Well, if that, pre-1958,20

would have been considered a legal parking spot -- I21

don't know whether it would have been; I think that's22

unclear -- then it would continue to be considered a23

legal parking spot for that building and it would have24

to be replaced. If it were not considered a parking25
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spot at the time, then they would be grandfathered.1

MEMBER ZAIDAN: The only way to determine2

that would be if seven by six or whatever the3

dimensions are were in conformance with the Zoning4

Code prior to '58.5

MS. MONROE: Right, whether the Code would6

have, you know, applied, if there was one. I don't7

know what was, in fact, in 1958.8

MEMBER ZAIDAN: The age of the house is9

1930, so in essence, when the house was built in the10

'30s, that would be the --11

MS. MONROE: Right. That would be the12

applicable --13

MEMBER ZAIDAN: -- the benchmark, so to14

speak.15

MR. OSSOLINSKI: May I add another thing16

just to confuse the matter some more?17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Sure.18

MR. OSSOLINSKI: The requirement that's19

mentioned in the Office of Planning 2116.4 -- I20

believe I have the number right -- has been added21

recently to the zoning requirements. It is not in --22

and please correct me if in the last four months this23

has changed, but it is not in the published zoning24

that you could buy next door; it is in the website25
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zoning. So it's a fairly recent occurrence that1

you're disallowed from parking on your own property2

but with -- between a building setback line and a3

street.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, we can figure5

that out quickly enough. I don't think that's a new6

addition to the --7

MR. OSSOLINSKI: There were some things,8

actually, that were taken out recently as well. The9

three-foot setback requirement from a building for an10

open parking pad; the ten feet from an adjacent11

residence was also struck; and this one was put in.12

MS. MONROE: Well, as far as I know,13

2117.1 would apply, also. It says the parking spaces14

required by this chapter, assuming one is required --15

that's the question. We don't know whether you have16

one.17

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Yes. Right. Right.18

MS. MONROE: Shall be provided and19

maintained so long as the structure that the parking20

spaces are designed to serve exist. So the question21

is, do you have a required spot, and I think that22

essentially is up to the interpretation of the Board23

at this point, but arguing the alternative, you could24

give the variance arguments and let the Board decide.25
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MR. BLOCK: If I may add, there was some1

question about that exact question when we discussed2

this with the Office of Planning. I met with Ms.3

Thomas. And that was also the thinking of some of the4

staff of -- I don't mean to represent your words, but5

the Zoning administrator said, you know, "It's you6

guy's ball." You know, everybody acknowledged that7

it's not useable as a parking garage. It probably8

hasn't been for a number of years. It certainly9

hasn't been since we've owned the house, and the10

people before us as well. But, you know, it does say11

"garage." So that's --12

MR. OSSOLINSKI: My mistake, Mr. Block.13

Sorry.14

MR. BLOCK: It should have been shed.15

So if you don't think it's a parking space16

and if you say I don't need a variance, then I'm good17

with that.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I imagine. Okay.19

I think we ought to proceed with20

Corporation Counsel advice, and that is let's get21

through the case. I would like the presentation of a22

variance case and tests attendant to that, and then,23

as we get through it, we can make the decision as we24

get to the end to see how we actually deal with this.25
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But then it will all be before us, so we will have1

all the options available.2

So with that, let's not --3

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Let's move on.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes, let's move on and5

not forgot that we can take up a motion to amend the6

application if we need.7

MR. BLOCK: Okay. What I would like to do8

is just sort of go over some of the key points. Matt9

will speak to how we meet this Section 223, the10

requirements for that.11

I wanted to submit into the record -- I12

don't know how I didn't get this in here earlier, but13

I have petitions from my neighbors, the 15 or so most14

affected neighbors, who support my application, and I15

have copies for the Chair.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. If you bring17

that up to the staff on the right.18

MR. BLOCK: And also, if you would also19

allow, attached to this, I think at the very end, is20

my nine-year-old asked me to submit a letter from him.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Fabulous. Give it to22

the staff on the right.23

TESTIMONY OF MARTIN BLOCK24

MR. BLOCK: As I said in my brief, a25
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couple of years back, we wanted to put an addition on1

the house. To me, the path of least resistance was to2

go westward towards Nevada Avenue, then I discovered3

that the building restriction line was basically an4

immovable force and an irresistible -- an immovable5

object, so I quickly abandoned the idea of trying to6

get the building restriction line removed when I7

discovered that there was, in addition to all other8

fees, a $2,500 fee to apply to get this thing done.9

I did go before the ANC at that time to10

get their advice. They suggested I hire a good11

architect and maybe I could fit what I wanted to do in12

that lot, and about a year ago, we started on that13

path.14

Since then, I have learned a whole lot15

about zoning, more than I think I ever want to know,16

but we worked with our neighbors for eight months, the17

most affected neighbors. I have talked to all the18

neighbors in the neighborhood who would see this19

thing, who would have to live through the20

construction, and I have, I think universally, their21

support.22

The project fulfills our needs for space.23

It doesn't encroach any further than the present24

nonconforming structure. It doesn't have a25
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substantially adverse effect on use or enjoyment of1

the abutting properties.2

Our present and projected utilization of3

lot size is still less than 40 percent, which I4

believe you're entitled to by right under the current5

zoning regulations. We're not exceeding any square6

footage utilization limits on the use of the space,7

which would be primarily as an artist's studio. We8

have the necessary permits for that. We're a lawfully9

licensed business.10

It addresses our goals and our family11

lifestyle goals, and we have been very, very cautious.12

I can't say enough that we have been very, very13

cautious in talking to everybody who is going to be14

affected to get a design that we think looks good and15

that doesn't make the neighborhood look radically16

different than, you know, than it does now.17

What I wanted to do was have Matt go18

through the particulars since he is better at all of19

these different zoning -- the rules of 223 and how we20

addressed them, and if it's okay with you, after that,21

I wanted to just ask a couple of questions.22

I would like to see -- also, do you have a23

copy of the ANC report that was submitted initially?24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.25
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MR. BLOCK: Would it be possible for me to1

see that?2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: It's Exhibit Number 21.3

Have you not seen it?4

MR. BLOCK: I don't have a copy of the one5

that was -- I don't have a stamped copy. I was just6

wondering if it was signed. I'm pretty sure it will7

have a signature block there, but I don't know that it8

was signed.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I can't have you10

approach.11

MR. BLOCK: I'm sorry.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What exhibit do you13

have?14

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Twenty-one, and15

there are two copies of it, one signed, one unsigned.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. I have Exhibit17

21, which is signed; is that correct? It was received18

March 18. And I have Exhibit Number -- is 26 the19

same?20

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: It seems as though21

there are two Exhibit 21s, one dated the 18th, one22

dated the 17th. That's the receipt date.23

MR. OSSOLINSKI: This morning, via some24

telephone calls, some confusion was laid into the25
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process whether the signed document is the same as the1

document that we have. We have a longer document.2

Apparently there's about three-quarters of a page that3

was added since the signature. This is hearsay at4

this point. We're just trying to determine that.5

MEMBER ETHERLY: Just to clarify, Mr.6

Chair, it would appear that Exhibit 21 was missing7

what appears to be a substantial portion of a second8

page, which was then provided --9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Oh, I see.10

MEMBER ETHERLY: -- as part of Exhibit 26.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.12

MEMBER ETHERLY: Exhibit 26, however, is13

not signed by Mr. Bucholtz, the vice chair, whereas14

Exhibit 21, the apparently incomplete submission from15

ANC, is signed by Mr. Bucholtz, the vice chair.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.17

MR. OSSOLINSKI: It's our contention that18

Mr. Bucholtz didn't see that second sheet when he19

signed it. That was the conversation we had -- he had20

with my client this morning.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: All right. Well, we22

will run through the substance of the second sheet.23

MR. BLOCK: With respect to that24

submission by the ANC, I submitted a brief on my own25
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behalf, which I don't want to go into in great detail,1

but the fact is that two of the -- one vote was taken2

by proxy. There were three people physically present.3

Only one of those commissioners voted against it4

based on the fact that my lot size was small and he5

thought that it would be over-built. The other two6

commissioners spent most of the time talking to me7

about my use and, you know, sort of went on and on8

about, you know, why do I need a larger house and so9

on, and I would just like to bring to the attention10

the tone and tenor of that meeting, not about how we11

met Section 223, but basically on how I plan to live12

in my own home --13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. And what we're14

concerned with is 223.15

MR. BLOCK: I appreciate that.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I just want to clarify17

the issue for the home occupation. We did look18

ourselves in reviewing the case, and 203.8, I believe,19

is the pertinent section, and it is an allowable home20

occupation, so it is, frankly, not before us, nor is21

anything else attendant to that. We would certainly22

-- that's not the right section.23

MR. BLOCK: What I had found, sir, was24

Section 203.1 -- I'm sorry -- 203.7.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.1

MR. BLOCK: Okay.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: There it is.3

MR. BLOCK: At this time, I would like to4

let, if it's all right with you, let Matt go ahead and5

explain how we addressed the various issues under6

Section 223.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Actually, I think it's8

pretty clear, 223, and I don't think anyone has any9

concerns with it, nor have I seen anything raised. I10

am concerned now just on the variance. We are11

potentially amending this application, in which case12

we need to talk about the uniqueness of this property.13

Out of that uniqueness, some practical difficulty14

occurs, is created, and tell us how, in fact, this15

won't impair the intent and integrity of the zone map16

and plan.17

MR. BLOCK: Okay. With respect to that, I18

was handed this morning a letter from my ANC19

commissioner, a copy of the letter from the ANC20

commissioner to you regarding this, this amendment,21

and I want to bring to your attention that, having22

read the letter, the letter appears to me to indicate23

that it's written on behalf of the ANC. In fact, I am24

told by the vice chair that this letter was brought up25
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at last night's meeting and that the preponderance of1

the people at the meeting chose not to entertain it2

because of lack of prior notice to the homeowner. So3

I would just like you to consider that an individual4

effort by Ms. Renshaw. It is not representative of5

the ANC.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.7

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Do you want to talk about8

the practical difficulties?9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.10

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Okay. Let me understand,11

you're asking me to just address the parking issue,12

that there is consensus on the special exception of13

223; is that correct?14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. Is there any15

objection from the Board? I think we're pretty clear16

on how it meets the test. Unless there are any17

questions, I think we need to focus more on the18

variance, the parking.19

Mr. Zaidan.20

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Just to make sure I21

understand, are you planning on using the parking spot22

-- are you planning on using it as a parking space?23

MR. BLOCK: The driveway that we've been24

using all these years I would plan to continue to use25
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as a parking space.1

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay.2

MR. BLOCK: I had initially thought that3

it was, you know, it was, quote/unquote, "a legal4

space" and I used a very poor turn of phrase in my5

letter requesting the amendment for the variance. You6

know, really I've just --7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Let me clarify. The8

issue is this. There is the second line -- and if you9

wouldn't mind, on that, can you darken in the building10

restriction line?11

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Well, there's a -- I don't12

remember what plan it is, but there's a good plan here13

showing that.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I understand that, but15

--16

MR. OSSOLINSKI: This yellow area here, if17

you can see that, represents the --18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You are going to need19

to pick up the microphone. I'm sorry, it's not for us20

to hear you; it's for the recorder.21

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Sure. I understand.22

This yellow area here shaded in represents23

the approximate 700 -- the area of approximately 70024

square feet of buildable area, taking into25
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consideration side yard, rear yard, and building1

restriction lines.2

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right. Okay.3

MR. OSSOLINSKI: And --4

MEMBER ZAIDAN: But -- I'm sorry.5

Continue.6

MR. OSSOLINSKI: The building restriction7

line is a line -- if you have copies of this at your8

desk, it may show up a little bit better, but the9

building restriction line basically joins the front10

facades of the adjacent houses, comes across here and11

then joins the front facade of my client's house and12

his neighbor's comes across here.13

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Well, you have an odd14

building window because it's a corner lot.15

MR. OSSOLINSKI: It's a corner lot.16

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right. Okay.17

MR. OSSOLINSKI: The two longest sides of18

the lot happen to be the sides that face the street,19

so there is even more restriction placed as a20

percentage of the lot than --21

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right. I understand that.22

I just wanted to get some clarity before we get into23

this that the testimony that we're going to receive is24

on a variance for the garage/structure to possibly use25
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that as a parking space.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: No. The variance is2

from relief from a one-parking-space requirement.3

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Oh. So they will not be4

required to have one parking space.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Exactly.6

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Correct.7

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay. Okay.8

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: I'm getting more9

confused by the moment, Mr. Chairman. He's going to10

park in his driveway like he has for the last twelve11

years. Help me with this.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's use, that's what13

they will practically do. That is not, according to14

zoning, legal parking space.15

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Because?16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Because it's beyond the17

building restriction line. It's between the building18

restriction line and the property line.19

MEMBER ZAIDAN: I think what the20

practicality is, let's say, for instance, we go21

through this, we decide the relief is necessary, and22

let's say we deny the variance, then the applicant is23

either A) going to have to pave part of the yard24

somehow to get a legal parking spot or expand that25
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garage to provide the parking spot.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You know, it's a2

fascinating question if we denied the variance.3

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Yes. That's kind of --4

I'm getting into the practicalities of this. That's5

why I'm asking these questions.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And that's exactly why7

I brought up the point, is if you don't actually have8

currently, by Zoning Title 11, a legal parking space,9

how --10

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: You mean you cannot11

park beyond the building setback line?12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's correct.13

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Yes. I don't think you14

can have a legal parking spot in the required setback.15

I don't know where that is in the zoning code, but --16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: 2116.4, which17

indicates, "Required parking spaces shall not be18

located in the area between the building line and a19

lot line abutting a street," and that is the specific20

-- as if it was written for this property, specific21

case.22

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Probably one of the23

few cases in the city.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, I think it occurs25
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because -- actually I think we'll probably hear the1

uniqueness of this property being on the corner --2

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Yes.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- creates that4

condition, which then, and steer me if I'm going5

incorrectly here, but would then create the practical6

difficulty of actually providing a legal, by Title 11,7

parking space. I think it's pretty clear. I think --8

and that was my point of asking them to certify the9

dimensions of the garage, because how can we count the10

garage as fulfilling the requirement of which we need11

to grant relief from?12

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: So your neighbor in13

the yellow house, --14

MR. BLOCK: Yes, sir.15

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: -- where does he16

park or she park?17

MR. BLOCK: They park in their driveway18

pretty close to the street because they can't open the19

doors to their car to get out because of the width of20

their garage and their driveway as well. They park21

pretty far up close to Nevada Avenue.22

MR. OSSOLINSKI: They park within the23

building -- between the --24

MR. BLOCK: Between the street and the25
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building restriction line.1

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Right. Between the2

building line and the building restriction line.3

MR. BLOCK: As do the neighbors on Nevada4

Avenue and Nebraska Avenue whose -- it's not shown5

anywhere, but all of the houses on the street that6

have a curb cut, which are basically the corner7

houses, park in what I now understand to be not a8

legal parking pad for purposes of calculating whether9

or not you have the appropriately zoned parking space.10

I also -- I don't know if this is11

appropriate or not, but recently, a block away from me12

on Nevada Avenue, north of Military Road, on the east13

side of the street, there was a house that was knocked14

down and rebuilt exactly on its foundations, and --15

well, or course, you know, with lots of new amenities16

-- and it appears that they have a parking pad that17

was poured between the public right-of-way and the18

building restriction line because the building19

restriction line runs down the face of the houses all20

the way up Nevada Avenue to Western Avenue.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. What are we22

supposed to do with that?23

MR. BLOCK: I just -- it seems to be24

something that -- for some reason or another, in this25
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particular case, it appears that they were allowed to1

use that as a parking pad.2

MR. OSSOLINSKI: It may have been approved3

under the published zoning regulations as opposed to4

the website zoning regulations.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.6

MR. BLOCK: It's several years old.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. Well, let's8

first get, just for my edification and clarification,9

whether 2116.4 is actually totally new, and we can ask10

staff to investigate that, but let's continue on.11

The reason why I'm fairly short and direct12

with, you know, what happened down the way is the fact13

-- twofold: One, we're not going to have any14

substantiation of what you just told us, but more15

importantly, the fact of the variance, each case is16

decided on its own merits, and it may well be that17

everyone in the neighborhood is doing it. That18

doesn't help you. I mean, it doesn't help you in19

terms of what we have to take in.20

So I think let's focus and make sure that,21

first of all, the Board fully understands what we are22

discussing at this point. We have not made a23

definitive decision whether we are amending the24

application to require a variance from parking, but we25
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are asking that the argument for the variance be made,1

and I think we left off with you describing the2

uniqueness of the property and the practical3

difficulty that arises from it, and then we will get4

into how it may or may not negatively impact the zone5

plan and map.6

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Thank you. The property7

we feel is unique because it is an acute angled corner8

property whereby most of the yard is taken up with9

required setbacks. You can see here sketched in is10

the parking size of a 9-by-19 parking space, and we11

cannot fit that at all between the building12

restriction lines and back toward the building. There13

is no way that we can fit that in.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You mean currently.15

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Currently.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.17

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Currently. So we're18

asking for a variance that lets us not fit that in.19

Whether we left the house as it is now or whether we20

built our addition the way we're proposing, we cannot21

fit in a 9-by-19 parking pad.22

MR. BLOCK: If I may add, if you look at23

the west -- the east side of the house, there is no24

entry or egress from the space between my house and25
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the house on Military Road.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Is north at the bottom2

of that site plan?3

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Yes. Yes, sir.4

MR. BLOCK: Yes. North is pointing down.5

See the north arrow?6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. So east is to my7

right?8

MR. BLOCK: To your left.9

MR. OSSOLINSKI: To your left.10

MR. BLOCK: East is over here.11

MR. OSSOLINSKI: We can fit -- I guess I12

can amend what I said, and this is what Marty is13

getting to, is that we can put a parking space14

existing in our current ten-foot-nine side yard on the15

east side.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.17

MR. OSSOLINSKI: But we do not have a curb18

cut --19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And that's in the20

record. You submitted a written statement about that.21

The size is there. You could, in fact, pave a pad,22

and that would require a curb cut off of Military23

Road.24

MR. OSSOLINSKI: It would require a curb25
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cut, it would require tearing down a large tree that's1

there. It would also require regrading and retaining2

walls in order to -- because there's a slope down on3

that. So we would need substantial construction and4

approval, substantial approvals from the city for the5

tree and the curb cut. So absent --6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. So, in fact,7

that's not necessarily a matter of right. I mean,8

there is an awful lot of approval that would go into9

that. I think you also stated in the written10

submission that Military is a fairly busy road and it11

might be somewhat unsafe to have a curb cut off of12

Military. Are there any curb cuts on Military in that13

block?14

MR. BLOCK: Actually, there are not. I15

looked. Other than, you know, other than the alley16

entrance and stuff like that.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.18

MR. BLOCK: Plus I would also point out19

that there is no alley, access to the house by an20

alley.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's another22

interesting point. Are the others on this square23

served by an alley?24

MR. BLOCK: Yes. Well, actually, the25
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house to the left, at the very far left, their1

property line, there is an alley there.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.3

MR. BLOCK: The people on the right -- the4

people immediately behind me do not have an alley, but5

the next one --6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. But some of the7

properties are served by the alley on the square.8

MR. BLOCK: Correct.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Any questions?10

Clarifications?11

MR. OSSOLINSKI: May I make just one other12

formal point?13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Of course.14

MR. OSSOLINSKI: I think I've implied it15

before. But currently, the parking pad extends to16

within the distance between the building line and the17

property line, in violation of the current zoning18

2116.4. That parking pad was there since the house19

was built. The parking has happened on that since the20

house was built. We're not altering that pad in our21

addition.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.23

MR. OSSOLINSKI: We would like to continue24

to park on what we have -- my client has been parking25
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on since he bought the house and since the house was1

constructed.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Understood. You call3

it a pad. There's no differentiation between the4

drive aisle or the driveway and a parking pad, is5

there?6

MR. OSSOLINSKI: We call it a pad because7

that's where it currently is parked.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.9

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Obviously it's part of10

what would be considered a driveway today because it11

would need to go through that space in order to access12

the parking -- a legal parking area. Again, we can't13

fit a legal parking area, be it garage or parking pad,14

on this site accessed from Nevada Avenue.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Questions? Mr.16

Parsons?17

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Do you know if this18

garage that currently exists with the addition on the19

top was an addition to the original house?20

MR. BLOCK: No. The garage and the porch21

above it were original, and the porch was enclosed22

before I purchased the house.23

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: So it was a24

screened porch on top of a garage.25
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MR. BLOCK: Yes. Or it might not have1

been screened at all, might have just, you know, been2

a couple of poles and -- sort of in the character of3

the house behind me, you know, clapboard type of4

siding type of thing. But I don't really know because5

it was enclosed before I bought the home.6

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Thank you.7

MR. OSSOLINSKI: The brick, the color of8

the brick, the texture of the brick, make it appear to9

be original to the house.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Other questions?11

Clarifications? Concerns?12

(No response.)13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Anything14

else on the presentation of your case?15

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Marty, do you want to go16

through where the unzoned parking is along Military17

and Nevada currently and your observations of that?18

MR. BLOCK: Just that on the stretch of19

Military Road between Nevada Avenue and Nebraska20

Avenue, and specifically in front of my home, there is21

no zone parking requirement.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So there is no23

residential zoning.24

MR. BLOCK: That's correct. And then on25
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Nevada Avenue as well, at least on my side, on the1

east side, there is none at all. I can tell you from2

having worked in the home a couple of years ago -- I3

don't work there now -- and based on my neighbors'4

comments, that there is nothing going on there during5

the day. People get in their car, they leave and they6

go to work.7

Also keep in mind that the people on8

Nevada Avenue between my immediate neighbor and9

Nebraska Avenue all have driveways and -- not10

driveways -- they all have garages in the alley behind11

their house, and that's where they park.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And in the13

written submission, the documents, you have outlined14

exactly the parking that happens on Nevada and15

Military, correct?16

MR. BLOCK: That's correct.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. And so your18

point is there is no restriction. Is there a time19

restriction on the parking?20

MR. BLOCK: Other than snow emergency21

route on Military Road, no, sir.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.23

MR. BLOCK: There is no time restriction.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So it's not signed at25
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all; you can --1

MR. BLOCK: That's correct. You could2

park there all the time.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: How far is this from4

Metro? No, no, no. That's not --5

MR. BLOCK: Over a mile.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.7

Questions? Clarifications?8

Obviously it's open parking on that9

stretch of Military and Nevada. Everyone clear?10

Anything else? You will have a time to add more if11

things come up.12

Okay. Let's go to the Office of Planning,13

get to their report, and I know they've had some14

comment on --15

(Pause.)16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I'm sorry. Good17

morning.18

REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF PLANNING19

BY KAREN THOMAS20

MS. THOMAS: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,21

members of the Board. I am Karen Thomas with the22

Office of Planning's report on the application before23

us requesting a special exception from the rear yard24

and lot area requirements to allow an addition to a25
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nonconforming structure.1

At this time, I would stand on the record2

concerning the applicant's submission for the 223. OP3

has no objection with the application as it could meet4

the standard of approval for the special exception5

subject to the resolution of the parking issue.6

We also considered the comments made7

concerning the home occupation concerns raised by8

members of the opposition. We have no issue with that9

as long as the home occupation requirements of 203 are10

not violated and the proposed addition satisfies the11

requirements of the 223.12

At this time, we have nothing further to13

add except that we would -- we believe the application14

could meet the standards for approval of a special15

exception subject to the resolution of the parking16

issue.17

Thank you.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you very much.19

Did you hear resolution of the parking issue today?20

MS. THOMAS: Basically. He has no other21

alternative but to park where he is parking now.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And does the Office of23

Planning have an opinion on whether this should be, in24

fact, a variance from the parking requirement or not?25
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MS. THOMAS: Well, we initially thought1

that it should be a variance and we concurred somewhat2

with the Zoning Administrator that this was, in fact,3

so, and he agreed with us that it should be a4

variance.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.6

Any other questions from the Board for the7

Office of Planning?8

Does the applicant have the Office of9

Planning's report?10

MR. BLOCK: Yes, I do.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Can you turn the12

microphone on and say that?13

MR. BLOCK: I'm sorry. Yes, I have a copy14

of the report.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent. Any16

questions, cross-examination of the Office of17

Planning?18

MR. BLOCK: No.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Thank you all20

very much.21

Then let's move on to the ANC report, and22

I guess there is some question of how much is in the23

official and isn't. Exhibit Number 21 I believe is24

our timely filed, signed ANC report. Mr. Etherly, do25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

69

you have that? Is that correct?1

MEMBER ETHERLY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.2

Once again, Exhibit Number 21 dated March 17th of3

2003 is a letter signed by Vice Chair of ANC-3/4G,4

Frank Bucholtz. That letter notes that at its March5

10th, 2003 duly noticed public meeting, the Advisory6

Neighborhood Commission voted four to three, with four7

being a quorum, not to support Application Number8

16996, special exception for the first floor and9

basement expansion of a single-family residence at10

3348 Military Road.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you. And have12

you done any evaluation of the submitted additional13

sheets?14

MEMBER ETHERLY: The additional15

documentation provided by the ANC is found at Exhibit16

Number 26, which was part of a fax that was forwarded17

to the Board of Zoning Adjustment offices on 3/19/03.18

That fax notes that that submission of the19

aforementioned March 17th letter includes a corrected20

portion of page 2 which was not included in the21

original Exhibit 21.22

The two letters do conform in that they23

continue to note that the ANC opposes the proposed24

application by virtue of a four to three vote. The25
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additional portion of page 2 that is included in1

Exhibit 26 provides a little further detail as it2

relates to the discourse at the March 10th, 2003, ANC3

meeting. Otherwise, the two letters do not appear to4

differ substantially.5

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: The three-page6

letter, my copy, is not signed.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's correct.8

MEMBER ETHERLY: That is correct.9

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: So what does that10

leave us with?11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's what's in major12

question here of whether --13

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: I think we ought to14

reject it.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.16

MEMBER ETHERLY: If I understand my timing17

correctly, Mr. Chairman, we don't have an issue18

regarding the submission of the first letter in a19

timely fashion, correct? That letter was timely20

filed?21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's right. Exactly.22

Here's the bottom line. Both letters are23

in agreement of the vote of the ANC. Whether we need24

the additional sheet or not, I think we can give great25
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weight to Exhibit Number 21, which is the timely1

signed submission by the ANC. It does outline all the2

requirements and the vote, which has now been stated3

by Mr. Etherly was not to support the application.4

MEMBER ETHERLY: I would agree, Mr. Chair.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And we can deliberate6

on that issue.7

Any other question of the Board regarding8

this?9

(No response.)10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Applicant have any11

additional clarifications? Do you understand what12

we're doing?13

MR. BLOCK: That basically you're not14

going to consider the amended or revised unsigned15

document that came from the ANC?16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That will not be the17

document that is given great weight, that is correct.18

MR. BLOCK: Okay. The only other thing19

that I would point out is that while this is short and20

succinct, that, you know, it was not -- typically this21

ANC is seven-zero, six-one, against any kind of22

amendments and stuff like that. This was four to23

three with a proxy. I understand that they voted with24

a proxy three times in the last four years. I think25
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that there is a concerted effort among some of my ANC1

members, too, because of my use, and I would like --2

and when you consider your great weight, I don't argue3

with the merits of the arguments with respect to 2234

-- people have their own opinions -- but the5

preponderance of this is all about use.6

That's all I have to say.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.8

MEMBER ETHERLY: Mr. Chair, I will also9

note I neglected to mention that we are in receipt of10

a March 25th letter in this case as well from ANC11

Commissioner 3/4G-03 Anne Renshaw as well, and I will12

just note that for the record, Mr. Chairman.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. And this was14

submitted as a single member district, which we can15

bring up as written testimony basically stating the16

position of the SMD, so it doesn't go into the17

official ANC report, which we have and is timely.18

Okay.19

MR. OSSOLINSKI: May I make one point? In20

consideration of the ANC document, the objections to21

the use were objections to the use as they exist now22

and those uses are proved.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. I think we're --24

MR. OSSOLINSKI: I'm repeating this, I25
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know --1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- clear on that.2

MR. OSSOLINSKI: -- but I would like to --3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: We are clear on this.4

MR. OSSOLINSKI: -- respond to that.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And we can6

address -- in our deliberations, hopefully we will be7

able to address it.8

Obviously there is some concern in the ANC9

and there was some discussion about the home10

occupation and the impact that that might have. As I11

stated, the home occupation is allowable as described12

and it is not before us. It would be before us if it,13

in fact, was not an allowable classification for home14

occupation.15

So that being said, I don't have any other16

attendant reports submitted unless any others are17

aware of -- I think we can go to testimony. If anyone18

is here today regarding 16996 of Martin Block to give19

testimony either in support or in opposition, they can20

come forward.21

(No response.)22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Not seeing a mad rush23

to the table, I take that as an indication of not.24

You know, I will take note as we're going25
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down here, we will go through some of the submissions1

in support and opposition. You have brought a model,2

and I think that actually helps, and I would direct3

the Board members to take a look at that because it4

does, in fact, illustrate well the massing -- actually5

you had it better before -- the massing of the6

addition, which you can see does, I think, address7

actually the slope change and also the diminished8

height as it turns the corner and actually helps wrap9

that corner.10

Anyway, I thought that should have been11

brought to the attention and we can refer back to that12

if needed or if there are any additional questions.13

Okay. Let's go through -- we have letters14

of support that were submitted and these will be given15

an exhibit number, and you have, Mr. Block, submitted16

these and you are indicating that this is certainly17

the adjacent neighbors on both streets; is that18

correct? Nevada and Military?19

MR. BLOCK: Yes. I actually had this done20

a couple years ago when I was entertaining moving the21

building restriction line. But these circles here,22

these are in a different square, so it's not on this.23

But these circles, everything here that is circled --24

there is a name on that petition, so this is my25
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property, this is the two adjacent neighbors,1

everybody down the street here, everybody across the2

street, the five houses that face my house except for3

this woman, who doesn't answer her door, and I4

couldn't remember the addresses along here, so I can't5

-- there are several people here, but I couldn't line6

up the addresses with the lot numbers.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.8

MR. BLOCK: But basically you can see the9

people who are most affected, I've gone to a great10

deal of trouble to make sure that they know what is11

going on. They have all seen the plans, many of them12

have seen the model, and they support my application.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And which ones14

don't?15

MR. BLOCK: Nobody that I -- everybody who16

answered the door supported it, and the people who17

didn't answer the door, I don't know what's what.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, we won't assume19

what that meant. Okay. So you don't know of anybody20

on your immediate square that is, in fact, in21

opposition to the application?22

MR. BLOCK: That's correct. In fact,23

nobody within a 200-foot -- Ms. Renshaw had24

hand-delivered notices of the ANC meeting for the 10th25
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and nobody showed up to oppose, although one woman did1

-- one woman who lives down here who walks the block2

just asked me to make sure I don't park in the3

sidewalk.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. I would hope you5

would make sure not to park on the sidewalk, too, but6

that goes without saying, I think.7

MR. BLOCK: That's correct.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Any questions?9

(No response.)10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: All right. And we do11

have, as I indicated now -- there is a last letter12

attached to all the form signatures --13

MEMBER ETHERLY: By my count, Mr.14

Chairman, that would be 15 signatures that we have on15

the petition that was submitted.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And all these folks saw17

your plans?18

MR. BLOCK: Yes, sir. I went door to19

door, I explained to them why I was there, told them20

that they were within the 200-foot -- 200 feet of my21

house, showed them the before and after plans,22

explained to them what my variance was or what my --23

at that time, it was simply the special exception, and24

pretty much everybody said, "Well, do the Hegwoods25
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mind?" And I showed that they were the first1

signatory, and they signed.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. Okay.3

MEMBER ETHERLY: You did the same level of4

review with your nine-year-old son as well, Mr. Block?5

MR. BLOCK: His concern came up -- was as6

a result of the process and the procedure, and that7

was presented to me this morning as I was preparing to8

leave the house.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, let me set the10

stage. The letter that Mr. Etherly is now about to11

cite, first of all, we don't have any restrictions on12

age in submitting testimony, which was discussed13

briefly in this letter.14

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Well, he's clearly a young15

aspiring zoning administrator.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Exactly. I think I17

would point to that myself. He indicates that he18

knows he's only nine years old and his vote probably19

won't count, but there is obviously a strong letter of20

support from Mr. Block, Jr. I'm trying to find that21

one line that was fabulous. Oh, here it is. The22

letter, quote, said, "I don't know any zoning rules or23

anything like that, but I do know it would rock if I24

could come home at a quarter to four and be able to25
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give my mom a hug and kiss." Nothing wrong with a1

letter like that.2

Anything else? Other testimony? Any3

other submissions that we need to be aware of?4

(No response.)5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well.6

MR. BLOCK: Thank you for accepting that.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Let's go to you,8

then, for any closing remarks that you might have.9

MR. BLOCK: I guess not to beat a dead10

horse, but we believe we have complied with all of the11

merits under Section 223. We have a lot of12

neighborhood support. We basically have a split ANC13

vote. The parking issue I would have addressed sooner14

had I known it existed. I think that we showed the15

problems with the lot and the lot configuration --16

practical hardship as well as sort of real financial17

hardship to try to make that work if it, in fact, can.18

There's no alley there and there's plenty of other19

parking available for that particular -- in the20

vicinity that doesn't really affect the neighbors, and21

that, you know, basically my assessment is, although22

-- lack of support that I've gotten from ANC is based23

on use other than the merits of the application.24

I guess it would be difficult to ask you25
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guys for a bench decision or summary decision as1

opposed to I guess your normal deliberative manner.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Why don't we see where3

we go and then we will figure that out?4

MR. BLOCK: Okay.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Let me address first of6

all -- anything else?7

MR. BLOCK: No, I don't think so.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Let me just make9

a quick comment on one of your last statements, and10

that is, first of all, hardship, and then you said11

financial hardship. We didn't hear any testimony12

today regarding that, nor would I think we would13

entertain it or would it be pertinent for this14

application. I think this application is15

straightforward in terms of what is required for its16

case presentation and it has been done today. So for17

clarification, we're not -- I would not believe that18

we're entertaining that unless other Board members19

feel differently.20

One of the pieces that you didn't bring21

out today, and I don't think it directly goes -- and22

it goes back into the issues of the home occupation,23

but it was interesting to read your description on24

some of the importances of having the home occupation.25
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I think actually your son's letter that we enjoyed1

goes to that, and that is, you know, having a parent2

home. Also, it does cut down on the additional cars3

that are commuting in and out of the city, and it does4

save some time and goes to a quality and standard of5

life. I want to make note of that. It is in the6

record; it is, in fact, in your written submissions.7

Okay. Board members, let's proceed. I8

think we have -- I know we have a motion to amend and9

I would like some quick clarification on the direction10

that the Board feels needs to be made in that regard.11

It would be a motion to amend the application to12

include the variance from the parking requirement as13

outlined in section 2101.1.14

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Do you want a15

motion to that?16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What I would like is17

just brief discussion to see whether we need the18

motion to amend. I mean, if we feel strongly -- and19

again, I said brief -- if we feel that that's needed,20

then let's do it. If not, let's move on and we have a21

special exception in front of us.22

I will restate, and hopefully23

articulately, my concern of amending the application24

to require a variance from the parking requirements25
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for a building that's built pre-1958 and does not,1

from what has been certified and testified this2

morning, does not have a legal parking space.3

MR. BLOCK: May I ask one more question,4

sir?5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.6

MR. BLOCK: In the event you find that I7

don't need a variance -- if I understand where you're8

going with this, is that why grant a variance to9

something that doesn't need one; is that correct?10

Would I then be subject to having either my ANC or11

somebody come out and say, "Yeah, you got your special12

exception, but you don't have parking and we're13

challenging this" at some point in the future?14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You set yourself up for15

an appeal, don't you? Okay.16

MR. BLOCK: I'm just asking.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: To take total18

precaution, and we have heard the case presentation19

today, I would move that we amend the application to20

include the variance from parking requirement under21

section 2101.1.22

MEMBER ETHERLY: Second, Mr. Chairman.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you, Mr. Etherly.24

Any further discussion required on that?25
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MEMBER ZAIDAN: Well, it would be nice if1

the record was a little bit more clear on whether or2

not this actually was a legal parking spot, but I3

think, to be safe, I think that's the right way to go.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.5

MEMBER ETHERLY: I'll mention in response6

to Mr. Zaidan's comment, Mr. Chair, that we did7

receive from the architect further certification8

regarding the dimensions of the garage on site, the9

shed, so to speak, the existing shed on site on the10

property.11

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right, which reduced the12

probability that this was a legal required space. But13

we don't have -- I mean, it's hard to get testimony --14

or hard to get facts either way because of the history15

of the property.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And then the17

unknown aspect is whether this, when built originally,18

was conforming to a parking requirement space if there19

was, in fact, one required --20

MEMBER ZAIDAN: If there is one required,21

right.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- at that point.23

So following the utmost caution, let me24

hear any opposition to the motion to amend.25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

83

(No response.)1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: In that case, I can2

take it as a consensus of the Board that we amend the3

application to include a variance from the parking4

requirement, in which case we now have an application5

before us for special exception and also the variance6

from the parking. Any further questions of the7

applicant at this time? Office of Planning, any other8

government reports?9

(No response.)10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: If not, I would move11

approval of Application 16996 of Mr. Block for the12

special exception which would allow the addition to13

the existing one-family dwelling -- this is under14

section 223 and premises 3348 Military Road -- and the15

motion to include the amended application for the16

variance from the one required parking and ask for a17

second.18

MEMBER ETHERLY: I will second that, Mr.19

Chair.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you very much.21

Discussion on this? I think it's fairly22

straightforward in terms of the 223. They have23

outlined and addressed all the pertinent points. It24

might narrow the availability, also the use of25
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adjacent properties. We do have the letters of1

support of the adjacent properties, and the importance2

of that is not that we have the vote from the3

neighborhood, but rather that no adverse impact was4

evidenced and, in fact, they were in support of it,5

which underscores that issue.6

We have talked about some of the design7

and its siting and its applicability and how it fits8

within the existing property and treats the grading on9

that property which I think fulfills most of --10

fulfills the special exception requirements and 22311

and the variance. It was outlined that this is a12

unique piece of property based on the fact that it is13

a corner lot.14

The buildable area, which was roughly15

about 700 square feet as defined by the building16

restriction line, also creates a unique situation17

which is attendant to being the corner lot, but it has18

two building restriction lines as opposed to the19

others on the flanking avenues that have one. This20

also creates a difficulty in its location on that21

corner and it's the unique shape of that corner piece22

that it does not have access to the alley which serves23

other adjacent properties on the square.24

Practical difficulty, of course, arises25
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out of all of those that make it difficult, if not1

impossible, to have a legal parking space or area2

without substantial removal of building or pursuing3

alternative courses off of Military Road, and it also4

goes to whether, in fact, the existing actually is5

available for parking, and certainly the addition to6

this structure does not create a new, more difficult7

situation, but just underscores the similar situation8

that the existing property is in.9

In terms of impairing the impact or10

integrity of the zone, I did not see any evidence that11

it would, in fact, do that. There was also12

substantial testimony both written and oral today13

about the availability of public parking. Also in14

terms of the practical occurrence of the current owner15

of where they park and how they will park, I don't16

think this addition in any way changes that situation17

and it will probably exist as it is now in terms of18

siting of the car.19

But that's just my summary. So if others20

have comments on the motion, additional opposition?21

MEMBER ETHERLY: No. I will just note for22

the record, Mr. Chairman, that I think you have been23

very thorough in laying out the reasons for the24

application satisfying the pertinent test here.25
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I will just note for the record that I1

think those same reasons also do speak to why we reach2

an outcome that may be different from where the ANC3

was in this regard, both with respect to the4

appropriateness of the proposed addition on the5

subject lot with regard to massing, being on the6

corner lot and the relationship to existing7

properties. I think a number of the concerns that8

were raised by the ANC just aren't compelling in that9

regard.10

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thanks. I'm glad you12

did bring that up, actually, because some of what13

kicks this -- well, both the variance and the special14

exception -- is not, in fact, the idea that the15

addition creates some sort of requirement for relief,16

but rather that the existing structure is17

nonconforming and therefore has to come in for the18

special exception. So that is an important address in19

terms of what the ANC's understanding -- or at least20

one commissioner has noted in the letter, Exhibit21

Number 21.22

Also in terms of the second, which was23

objecting to the scale of the proposed development on24

such a small lot, looking, first of all, at the25
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drawings that were submitted in the record and also1

looking at the model that was here today, which we2

will actually need a photograph of just to submit into3

the record, I think that the scale is very appropriate4

and proportional to that, and it actually is a fairly5

demanding place to put -- to look at it based on the6

fact that you have two adjacent properties that you7

are really trying to deal with. I think the8

proportions are not objectionable; at least no9

evidence was brought into the record that compelled10

me.11

One of the other issues was the rear yard,12

which, of course, is one of the nonconformities of the13

existing building under 404.114

Okay. Anything else, then? Last comment,15

Board members? Discussion on the motion?16

MS. MONROE: Mr. Chairman, can I ask you a17

question?18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.19

MS. MONROE: I just want to clarify. Are20

you moving to grant 223 and to amend the application21

to include the variance, or also to grant the22

variance? Is that a separate --23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: We have amended the24

application to include the variance and we now have a25
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motion that has been seconded and discussed to grant1

the special exception and variance.2

MS. MONROE: Okay. Good. I just wanted3

to be sure.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Mr. Parsons?5

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Maybe the confusion6

that arises is there was no vote on the first motion.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.8

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: You just did it by9

consensus.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's true.11

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: I don't know12

whether we need to clarify that or not.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Ms. Bailey, is the14

record clear on that?15

MS. BAILEY: It's clear for me, Mr.16

Chairman.17

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Okay.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent. Okay. Out19

of great expedition, I sometimes make things unclear.20

In which case, I would ask for all those in favor of21

the motion to signify by saying aye.22

(Chorus of ayes.)23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And opposed?24

(No response.)25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Ms. Bailey, when you1

are ready, we can record that vote.2

MS. BAILEY: Sure, Mr. Chairman. The vote3

is recorded as four-zero-one. The motion was made by4

Mr. Griffis; seconded by Mr. Etherly. Mr. Parsons and5

Mr. Zaidan were in agreement. Mrs. Renshaw is6

recused. That is to approve the special exception to7

allow the addition, and the application is also8

amended to grant relief from the parking variance9

under section 2101.1.10

Mr. Chairman, will this be a summary order11

or a full order?12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I'm not sure we can do13

a summary order with the ANC in opposition. Is that14

correct, Ms. Monroe?15

MS. MONROE: That's correct.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.17

MS. BAILEY: So that's a full order, Mr.18

Chairman.19

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Mr. Chairman?20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.21

MR. OSSOLINSKI: The ANC is not in22

opposition; it is not supporting.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You're the architect,24

not the lawyer, right?25
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MR. BLOCK: For the record, Ms. Renshaw,1

when one of her colleagues asked if she was going to2

be testifying against us, you know, against the3

application today, she said she makes a distinction4

between not supporting and opposing.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.6

MR. BLOCK: And she was the one who7

authored the motion that said not to support my8

application. So I'm not sure where that leaves you.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Me neither. Ms.10

Monroe, do you have an opinion?11

MS. MONROE: I'm just looking at the -- I12

think this is the signed letter.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.14

MS. MONROE: It says that at its March15

10th, 2003, duly noticed public meeting, the Chevy16

Chase Advisory Neighborhood Commission voted four to17

three, quorum being four, not to support Application18

16996, a special exception for the -- I would take19

that as opposition. I don't know if there is a clear20

legal definition of "opposition," but to me, that21

looks like opposition.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.23

What is the issue? Time?24

MR. BLOCK: Yes. Can I ask what's the25
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procedure from here if it just goes for a, as opposed1

to summary order, what you call a full order?2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: If we do a full order,3

it does include all of the conclusions and findings of4

fact, so the legal conclusions, it states findings of5

fact. One thing that expedites full orders is if a6

draft order is submitted, a draft conclusions and7

findings. Are you able to do something of that8

nature?9

MR. BLOCK: Well, you read the documents10

that I submitted. I wrote them.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.12

MR. BLOCK: What do you think? I'm13

serious.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: No, I think it would be15

fine. I think that would expedite things quite a bit.16

And this is what you can do. You can, before you17

leave here, go into the Office of Zoning and get a18

typical findings and conclusions draft. We will ask19

the ANC also to submit, as they are a party in this20

case, submit those in as quickly as possible. That21

goes in to staff; they do review it. It helps set up22

the draft. And they will give you any other23

directions or answer any other questions that you24

might have. Let's pursue it that way.25
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I think it's pertinent to do a full1

because I wouldn't mind having some of the Board's2

discussion on the parking variance and the motion for3

that and, frankly, the questionable requirement for4

having that variance. So with that, you don't need to5

address that necessarily. We can certainly pull that6

in. You want to just stress your facts, law, and then7

we will get the rest. Is that clear?8

MR. BLOCK: Yes.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.10

Ms. Bailey, are you okay with that?11

MS. BAILEY: Yes, Mr. Chairman.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent. In which13

case, I thank you very much. It wasn't that bad,14

right? The dentist is worse, wouldn't you say? Okay.15

MR. OSSOLINSKI: Thank you.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Go enjoy the afternoon.17

MR. BLOCK: Thank you.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: We are going to take19

five minutes and let the next applicant set up, and we20

will return.21

MR. BLOCK: I will have you pictures of22

this by the end of the week. You needed photographs23

of this. I didn't bring them.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes, indeed, as quickly25
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as possible, because actually we should not let you1

leave with that as it is part of the record.2

(Recess.)3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Why don't we4

reconvene. Ms. Bailey, when you are ready, you can5

call the next and last case of the morning.6

MS. BAILEY: Thanks, Mr. Chairman.7

APPLICATION OF U.S. PROPERTY8

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION9

16999 ANC-2F10

MS. BAILEY: Application Number 16999 of11

U.S. Property Development Corporation, pursuant to 1112

DCMR 3103.2, for a variance from the lot occupancy13

requirements under section 772, a variance from the14

residential recreation space requirements under15

section 773, a variance from the court requirements16

under section 776.17

This is to allow the construction of a18

six-story apartment building with ground floor retail19

space in the Arts/C-3-A District at premises 1401 and20

1413 P Street, Northwest, 1502 through 1506 14th21

Street, Northwest, 1510 through 1520 14th Street,22

Northwest, and 1410 Church Street, Northwest. The23

property is located in Square 209 on Lots 1 and part24

of 2, also known as 800 and 802.25
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Please stand, all those who will be1

testifying, to take the oath.2

Mr. Williams, will you not be testifying?3

MR. WILLIAMS: No, ma'am.4

MS. BAILEY: Okay.5

(Witness sworn.)6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good morning,7

gentlemen.8

MR. DePUY: Good morning, Mr. Chairman.9

For the record, I'm Jack DePuy, attorney10

with Greenstein, Delorme & Luchs. Appearing with me11

as co-counsel is Lyle Blanchard. We are going to12

proceed right to our witnesses. We have two witnesses13

this morning, Mr. S.P. "Chip" Newell, who represents14

the applicant, and Mr. Mark Fairbrother, an architect15

with RTKL. Mr. Newell will give a very brief overview16

of the project. We will then have Mr. Fairbrother17

describe the project focusing in particular on the18

relief requested, and then we will come back to Mr.19

Newell, who will address the justification for the20

variance.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent. If I can22

interrupt you, can you quickly address two issues that23

the Board has. First of all, can you indicate which24

of the structures actually have historic25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

95

certification, and also whether, just to bring some1

clarification of -- there is some written submission2

regarding the closing of the alley, whether that has3

permanently been closed, and we can just indicate the4

length of what that is, or is it just a construction5

closing.6

MR. DePUY: Okay. I will respond to the7

second question; Mr. Newell will respond to the first.8

The alley closing has been approved by the Council,9

--10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.11

MR. DePUY: -- submitted to the Congress12

and is awaiting congressional review. We expect that13

the alley will be -- the congressional review period14

will expire on or about March 31st, in just a matter15

of a few days.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And the extent just17

goes past the property of the closing?18

MR. DePUY: I'm sorry? The --19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: The extent of the20

closing.21

MR. DePUY: Okay. We will describe that22

for --23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Is that part of what24

you're going to address?25
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MR. DePUY: We will describe that in the1

overview.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.3

MR. DePUY: For the members' information,4

an easement is going to go back on the alley that's5

being closed, so for all intents and purposes, the6

alley will remain open even after it is technically7

and formally closed.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. It will remain9

useable.10

MR. DePUY: Yes.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.12

MR. DePUY: And I will ask Mr. Newell to13

address your question with respect to the historic14

buildings.15

MR. NEWELL: My name is S.P. "Chip"16

Newell, and I am a principal with Metropolis17

Development Company, which is the managing member of18

Mid-City Holding Development Company, which is a joint19

venture of U.S. Properties and Metropolis.20

There are three buildings currently on the21

site, two buildings that look like one now at 1510 and22

1520 14th Street, and a third building right here at23

1502 14th Street, and all three of those buildings are24

contributing buildings to the Historic District.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So you have it1

certified that they are contributing.2

MR. NEWELL: That's correct.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And I guess what4

we will need is just that certification letter5

submitted into the record.6

MR. NEWELL: Okay. Fine.7

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: I have a follow-up8

question.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.10

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Is this the design11

that was reviewed by the Historic Preservation Review12

Board last September?13

MR. NEWELL: Yes, it is. That's the same14

models.15

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: I wasn't quite16

clear. They approved it but delegated some of the17

details to the staff?18

MR. NEWELL: Yes, sir, that's correct.19

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: And are you at the20

detail level yet or --21

MR. NEWELL: We have reviewed at the22

schematic design level the next level of detail with23

the staff, and the way we have worked with the staff24

in the past is that as we reach a new design point, we25
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meet with the staff and review that. So it's a1

continuing process until the staff finally signs off2

on the permit drawings.3

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: But we're not4

looking at those revisions; we're looking at the same5

design you had last September.6

MR. NEWELL: That's correct.7

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Thank you.8

MR. FAIRBROTHER: The models are the same.9

Some of the drawings are updated to reflect the10

design detail development from the original drawings.11

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Do you have a12

better example of this drawing with you today?13

MR. FAIRBROTHER: I don't have that14

drawing, but we could get you a color copy, if you15

wish.16

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: It's very hard to17

comprehend what's going on in this drawing. Maybe18

it's just my copy.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: They are all the same.20

MR. DePUY: Shall we proceed, Mr.21

Chairman?22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Any other questions at23

this point?24

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: No.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good. Yes, let's1

proceed.2

MR. DePUY: At this point, we will ask Mr.3

Newell to give the beginning, his overview statement4

first, and then we will proceed with Mr. Fairbrother.5

TESTIMONY BY S.P. NEWELL6

MR. NEWELL: We are here to request7

approval of variances pursuant to the zoning8

regulations as outlined in our application and our9

prehearing statement. We plan to develop a10

two-portion project on the site containing a total of11

55 condominiums with 11,000 square feet of retail and12

65 parking spaces. The project will be the final13

portion of our one and a half block development on the14

west side of 14th Street north of P Street, and it's15

the first major redevelopment along the important 14th16

Street commercial corridor in the emerging Logan17

Circle neighborhood.18

The project has received approval from the19

Historic Preservation Review Board as noted subject to20

staff review of further changes and will retain the21

three historic buildings on the site.22

We have presented the project and its23

sister to the north to many neighborhood and citizens'24

groups, including the ANC, on numerous occasions and25
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have their unanimous support.1

The preservation of these historical2

buildings and the resulting limited area on the3

remainder of the site present constraints that force4

us to request the variances in front of you today. We5

ask for your favorable review of our request so we can6

continue with this important revitalization project.7

Now I would like to ask Mark Fairbrother8

to walk through the project with you.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good. Any questions?10

Let's pay particular and expeditious attention just to11

the areas that are under review for relief.12

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Okay.13

TESTIMONY BY MARK FAIRBROTHER14

MR. FAIRBROTHER: My name is Mark15

Fairbrother. I'm with RTKL. Quickly I will go16

through and just try to orient.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.18

MR. FAIRBROTHER: If you might remember,19

we came in and talked about that parcel, which we20

referred to as Parcel A, previously.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.22

MR. FAIRBROTHER: And this parcel, which23

has a north and a south portion, adjoins that across24

Church Street, and on the models you can kind of see25
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them easier here. The sort of Hershey-colored pieces1

are them, this being Parcel A and this one being the2

north and the south portion of the parcel we're3

speaking of today.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And for5

clarification, it's the southern -- to the left, the6

portions that we're looking at today.7

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right. And this is 14th8

Street, P Street, and the Fresh Fields would be this9

lower building here. This is an enlarged model of10

this portion here, and as Chip was referring to and11

might go into a little more detail, the original12

contributing historic structure is this one here, has13

a limestone face, and then it turns the corner, as you14

can -- I will spin this around. We will bring a Lazy15

Susan next time we're here. You can kind of see that16

that building transitions to a brick facade that wraps17

all the way to here, and that footprint actually goes18

from the Church Street side all the way through to the19

alley and fully covers the site.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: But the original21

building is that depth where we're seeing a break in22

basically the design?23

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right there.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.25
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MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right there.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So that kind of almost2

-- the larger kind of punched openings for the window3

fenestration there, --4

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- those are original.6

MR. FAIRBROTHER: That's right. That's7

right. Now, let me just talk about the southern8

portion of the site and then we will get into what9

HPRB -- how we worked with HPRB on the massing.10

On the southern portion, there is a11

building here, which is the Pelz Building, which12

there's a vacant lot, a vacant lot on the corner, and13

then the Pelz Building extends far back into the depth14

of the site.15

If I might just bring up a plan. You can16

easily see it here. The face facade that I was17

referring to was this one here. We are preserving18

essentially this structure all the way back. The19

limits of the lot are from the sidewalk here to this20

face right there. So that building is preserved as a21

historic structure within this.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see. And the one on23

that plan and also on the model, which you are calling24

an adjacent building, that fronts the alley that's25
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closed or going to be closed.1

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's something that3

wasn't able to be acquired or whatever it is. It's4

not part of the properties that are being redeveloped.5

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right. Exactly.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.7

MR. FAIRBROTHER: And just to, forgive the8

pun, close on the alley issue, that is really so that9

we have one parking entrance on Church Street, albeit10

down from the corner, and by building underground11

parking that connects both sites, we're able to12

provide parking for both north and south wing through13

one entrance and not have another cut or interrupt the14

retail streetscape along P or 14th. So that's the15

reason why it closes. We have the alley closed from16

here to here so we can build that underground parking17

and then come back over and repave it at grade so it's18

a useable alley, and that shows here. I mean, if you19

have the right viewpoint, you can see it.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.21

MR. FAIRBROTHER: As we worked through22

HPRB, one of their great concerns was that we not23

disturb the historic nature, character of the24

structures, and they have asked us and we have worked25
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with them to set the buildings back fairly greatly1

from 14th Street. The north parcel setback is2

actually 60 feet for the tower.3

Now, what we worked with them on and the4

theory behind this particular one is that there's a5

limestone facade that quickly transitions after 156

feet to a fairly simple industrial character brick7

building. In order for this not to seem like we're8

really changing that character, we have created this9

building as if it was a front door on Church Street10

and almost like an adjacent lot. But they are11

allowing us to build one story above this in the same12

character as this. In fact, we're salvaging the brick13

from the side of the building on this side to reuse up14

here so it's the same materials. Now, we are15

replacing all the windows, but we're being16

historically correct in the profiles and the17

detailing.18

So it does set back to here. This is new19

from here to here, and then this is new here, and then20

it actually feels like it centers on that over the21

parking entrance.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Is there any23

articulation on that elevation of that building? I24

mean, it's basically --25
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MR. FAIRBROTHER: No. I mean, there's a1

very simple facade, and I will get into it, show a2

little more detailed elevations of that building, but3

we are keeping this stuff fairly neutral with big4

openings so that it sort of works with this thing5

about a fairly detailed and ornate piece set on a6

neutral brick box.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.8

MR. FAIRBROTHER: We're developing a lot9

of detail on this piece so it feels the same, that10

this is a sort of piece like this set on this neutral11

brick box. It allows us to basically work and make12

this massing feel like it resolves itself.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.14

MR. FAIRBROTHER: But the bigger point is15

we're setting back 15 for one floor, and then we're16

setting back all the way to 60 here, and I think, in17

the end, what we're going to talk about is the fact18

that we really can't do a lot of major surgery to this19

existing structure, so all our infrastructure for20

these buildings are built back here, our parking, our21

elevators, all the loading in the service, all the22

incumbent features that we can't interrupt here are23

being put back here, so consequently we're occupying a24

lot of this site, and hence the lot occupancy issue25
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comes to the fore.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.2

MR. FAIRBROTHER: That is true of both3

structures. Because we are preserving this structure4

all the way back, it -- and this setback is not as5

great. This is about 30 feet. And how this is6

working is to try to keep this lower scale along 14th7

and then set back the tower. But the elevator core,8

the service, the trash, and all that, is pushed to the9

back of the site, as is the density essentially. So10

what you're looking at is a reallocation of the11

density on the site to, you know, get it to be12

workable with the allowable FAR, although in some13

cases we're below that, and preserve the setbacks in14

the front.15

Regarding the lot occupancy, the issue,16

that's kind of the point. I want to quickly go17

through the drawings, if I could, so you can see what18

the development is, and we'll start with this other19

portion. That would be that portion right there.20

As I mentioned, at ground floor, there's21

no parking and there's an entry, because the elevator22

core and the stairs are all pushed back to the back,23

there's an entry and you can kind of see how service,24

trash removal and all that sort of works, oriented to25
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the back. And then it's fully retail, this full1

block. We're going to have some issues, obviously,2

with leasing because of the imposition of this3

existing building, but we're dealing with those.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: If you looked at this5

project all together as if it was one building, what6

would be your primary facade?7

MR. FAIRBROTHER: For all three parcels?8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.9

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Fourteenth Street and P10

Street would be the two primary facades.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.12

MR. FAIRBROTHER: And as you can see, on13

this parcel, which I will flip this around -- take14

this off for just a second --15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So this is the P Street16

elevation you're showing?17

MR. FAIRBROTHER: This is that elevation.18

And because the mass steps down as it does, what we19

have developed is a sort of -- if you look at this20

building across the way, the fish market, there's a21

tower that rises up on the corner. So in massing,22

this tower sort of complements it in height and scale.23

So we have one vertical element here and then a24

vertical element for the entry to the building, and25
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then this essentially is a horizontal banding, albeit1

it has vertical elements within it, that sort of2

connects the two towers and brings the project3

together sort of as a massing, and you can see how4

that works in that.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: The elevation that you6

are showing, 33.21, --7

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- and the model we're9

looking at, --10

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- the elevation is12

still showing the kind of bay type system that's set13

up in the --14

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Uh-huh.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.16

MR. FAIRBROTHER: You can see that. That17

essentially -- these elements within here are set back18

slightly from this and are those elements here.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. And the20

projection of the bay is what? Is that glazing? Is21

that windows, glass?22

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes. Those are the23

units, mainly the unit living rooms that sit within24

that.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.1

MR. FAIRBROTHER: We are looking at a2

high-quality curtain wall, brick facade with a fair3

amount of detailing, stone base. The brick has4

banding in it that sort of corresponds to the window5

fenestration pattern. So this side is a very open and6

glassy side to the building.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So the issue, when you8

put up the south elevations you're showing, is9

obviously it's flattened, and so you don't see all the10

dimensions and the articulation --11

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- and undulation of13

what's happening on that elevation, but it is14

represented in the model.15

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.16

That, Mr. Parsons, rendering you were17

referring to is actually taken as if it's looking sort18

of at that corner, but when color renderings go black19

and white, they tend to lose some of that --20

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: That's the element21

of it that I find troubling, and of course I should22

yield to my colleagues on the Historic Preservation23

Review Board, but that tower, it's difficult with this24

photograph and that model to understand it. I just25
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don't understand it as a companion to that historic1

building. So what is it that you're going to do to2

articulate that and --3

MR. FAIRBROTHER: We really wanted to make4

and they concurred that this piece on the end felt5

like it was part of this building, but at the same6

time, it had the grain and scale of these structures7

that sat beside it, and you can see it better here8

where these dimensions start to work together and the9

scale of them start to work with 14th Street. That10

was what they thought was critically important in all11

the discussions, because we came in with a very12

different scheme, and the scheme we came in to start13

with was based on the approved massing that happened14

some years ago. The landscape of the board changed15

quite a bit and we worked with them.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Funny how that is.17

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And your other point19

was, in terms of the corner, how you are addressing20

the corner is to put some sort of architectural21

element there.22

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: As you've indicated,24

across the street, there is something of that nature.25
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But that's also, wouldn't you say, fairly vernacular1

in the stretches of row houses and the commercial2

buildings?3

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right. They didn't have4

an issue with it feeling like a modern building that5

looked like it was built in this era, but they wanted6

at least an acknowledgement of how the corner worked7

and the massing sort of again stepped up to this8

corner, as you can see here, --9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.10

MR. FAIRBROTHER: -- and then steps over11

and then steps down again.12

Now, obviously this portion of the13

building is set back 30 feet. You can kind of see it14

here. Again, this is part of the project here, which15

feels like, again, a row house of different character16

than the ones that sit beside it. The things it will17

have in common with this building are some18

acknowledgement of the banding, but not a whole lot.19

I mean, it's going to feel like its own individual20

piece in there.21

You know, we have a lot of issues.22

Because this is wood construction, we're also having23

to hold it up, and so there's a lot of issues24

regarding this. We're having to change the wood25
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construction to non-combustible to sort of comply with1

the code requirements.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So you are taking out3

all of the floors --4

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Floors.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- in the building?6

MR. FAIRBROTHER: That's right.7

MR. NEWELL: Actually, as a clarification,8

we're taking the floors up behind the 30-foot mark.9

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.10

MR. NEWELL: The first 30 feet we're11

retaining as a whole, and it will be treated as a12

separate building for code purposes.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. You're doing it14

because Preservation wanted you to keep the original15

floor systems out front?16

MR. NEWELL: That's correct.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Indeed.18

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Let me move some of19

these down. We can refer back to them if you need to.20

The north side of this continues this sort of simple21

punch vocabulary, spacious size openings. There is22

one set of balconies in the back for a couple of the23

units, but again brick, high-quality window system,24

and that kind of shows that.25
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MEMBER ZAIDAN: What type of balconies are1

those?2

MR. FAIRBROTHER: They are full balconies,3

so they have dimension to them. I can show you on the4

plan.5

MEMBER ZAIDAN: That's all right. I just6

didn't know if they were the --7

MR. FAIRBROTHER: They are not Juliet8

balconies.9

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Juliet balconies. I10

always forget that name. If they were the shorter11

balconies or the full balconies.12

MR. FAIRBROTHER: And they are built with13

a lot of metal.14

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay.15

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Painted metal.16

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Would you just17

point out how many of the units would have balconies18

on that side?19

MR. FAIRBROTHER: On this side, only these20

few. The ones at this level have access to a terrace21

that sits atop the retail, so only these few here.22

Actually, these ones here on the corner use the top of23

these. You can kind of see that stair lift over and24

actually set upon that. And you can kind of see those25
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two balconies here on that. There's that terrace I1

was referring to of that unit, kind of sits across.2

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Where is that terrace on3

the model here again?4

MR. FAIRBROTHER: This one is right there.5

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right there?6

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes.7

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay. And even though8

part of the relief here is for residential rec space,9

that's part of what you're providing?10

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right. Right.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Those are private12

terraces; is that correct?13

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Private terraces.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So they don't go15

towards the -- counting towards the requirement for16

residential rec.17

MEMBER ZAIDAN: That was my question.18

They don't.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: They do not.20

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Because they are private.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.22

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right.23

MR. FAIRBROTHER: This is below this24

floor, but you can see here, as the Pelz Building25
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rises up, how we're utilizing -- this has actually1

worked out pretty well, to be able to utilize these2

existing brick walls. You know, this is one unit on3

the corner. You can kind of see you enter in and kind4

of walk through this brick wall. This is kind of a5

neat unit. There's an egress stair here. That unit6

has a stair up to the second level in that wall, so7

it's pretty interesting stuff.8

As Chip was referring to, there is a9

firewall that happens right here. You can see that10

that is a firewall and that is its own, for code11

purposes, its own building with two means of egress.12

And here you can see where these units utilize that13

terrace atop the retail.14

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Did I hear you say this is15

all one unit across the P Street elevation?16

MR. FAIRBROTHER: No. It's actually -- it17

changes depending on the level of the building. At18

this particular level, there are two units, one that19

stretches and includes this end piece here, and then20

one over here. There are only 18 units in this21

building.22

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Wow. That's a lot of work23

for 18 units.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's a sizeable unit.25
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Three balconies, 2,000 square feet, and a second1

level.2

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Is that allowable under4

zoning? That's sweet.5

MR. FAIRBROTHER: This is actually where6

we're referring to -- this actually shows two of the7

court reliefs we're looking for, one at the lowest8

level, or it's adjacent to this. We are providing9

some residential rec space here. There's a loading10

area here. So that one does not conform to the11

requirements of the court.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What level are we on13

with the residential --14

MR. FAIRBROTHER: That would be --15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's the ground16

level.17

MR. FAIRBROTHER: The ground level, yes.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.19

MR. FAIRBROTHER: I'm just referring to it20

on this plan --21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You're pointing to it.22

And that's an interesting piece. While you're there,23

pull that up, if you wouldn't mind -- it's 30.21 --24

the multipurpose room, which is 280 square feet.25
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MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That is off of the2

service easement, --3

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- as we might call it5

at this point. What do you propose that is going to6

be used for?7

MR. FAIRBROTHER: This is residential8

common space for -- go ahead.9

MR. NEWELL: We look at this, if the10

residents want to -- I sort of call it a tranquility11

room. If people want to go down and have an area to12

stretch for yoga, we're going to put a soft wooden13

floor in there and make sure that it's a tranquil type14

place. And while it's off what's shown and is, in15

fact, a loading, with only 18 units, the loading will16

not be used very much, and so we even think that area17

can end up being a desirable area.18

The alley to the west has been redone with19

stamped concrete by the developer to our west and we20

intend to use stamped concrete in our portion of the21

alley that we're redoing, too, to make it more like a22

lane than an alley back there.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see. Are you going24

to have lighting on that?25
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MR. NEWELL: Yes, we will.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What kind?2

MR. NEWELL: We haven't gotten that far3

yet.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.5

MR. NEWELL: I'm not sure.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Are you proposing it be7

attached to the -- well, you can't attach it to the8

building. So you're going to put pole lighting in9

there.10

MR. NEWELL: We will try to put as much of11

the lighting on the building on one side of the alley12

or the other.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.14

MR. NEWELL: That is definitely our15

intention. We may be able to light the alley from the16

other side of the building on the north portion.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see. Well, you know,18

I think that's an excellent idea and I would give my19

direction to take it seriously, then. Don't put some,20

you know, major surface parking fixtures out there;21

put some nice fixtures and it will probably be used.22

But there it is.23

MR. NEWELL: Well, you know --24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Residential25
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multipurpose room. Clearly we have a requirement for1

it. You've got to put it in where you can. Any2

windows in that room?3

MR. FAIRBROTHER: These doors will have4

glass in them.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. Those are two of6

the four doors that actually go through that7

280-square-foot room.8

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.10

MR. FAIRBROTHER: And actually, you know,11

I'll be honest with you, we haven't really looked at12

that very closely at this stage of the game where13

we're at.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That's a good honest15

statement.16

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Let me just underscore18

the fact that I appreciate that you do have to carve19

this kind of space out. So I think that will take20

some attention if it really is useable for anything,21

but, you know -- actually, why would you need one of22

the doors off of the alley?23

MR. FAIRBROTHER: This is actually --24

we're connecting to the building across the way.25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

120

We're connecting to the --1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: There's a physical2

enclosure?3

MR. NEWELL: It's a covered walkway.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Oh, I see.5

MR. NEWELL: Covered walkway.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: That makes sense.7

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: There it is.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. I see. Okay.9

MR. FAIRBROTHER: While we're dwelling on10

this, since we got on this issue, I will put up one11

other drawing. One of the issues we tried to do --12

unfortunately, I don't have that drawing with me. I13

apologize.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Do we have it in our15

package?16

MR. FAIRBROTHER: You may. It's the17

underground level of this parcel which shows the18

parking.19

Well, the thing I was going to point out20

on it is that we have carved out the underground space21

for parking, and we really can't really move much past22

this line. In order to get parking to work, we fully23

filled that. So we're trying to find the rec space24

where we can, but if you look at it from the25
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perspective we're working with, we've got all the1

building services and all the things that make the2

building work pushed back to the back of the site.3

You know, we've got the parking to work so that the4

building is marketable, and there just isn't a lot5

left meeting the retail requirement. That's true of6

both parcels.7

Can I jump to the north portion for a8

moment and go through the same drawings?9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. While you're10

pulling those up, let me just give the Board the11

direction of -- we're looking at the south portion,12

what you've just addressed.13

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right. That was the14

south portion.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Which starts on 30.2P2.16

We have P2 and P1, and it shows, in fact well on P1,17

the outline of the existing structure above, and you18

can see the diminished footprint of that parking and19

the availability of it.20

There's the edge corner that's remaining21

unexcavated. The issue there -- oh, I see. It's22

still the same issue in terms of the adjacency to the23

historic and it runs along 14th Street, so you're24

setting back, as you said -- actually, it's 44 feet on25
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these drawings on the southern portion. Okay.1

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes. It's actually2

disturbing, you know, that existing building.3

On the north portion, if I might go4

through the elevations quickly, this again is set back5

as it shows on the model. So when you see it, you're6

seeing this in the foreground and it gradually sets7

back, but it all looks like it comes together at once.8

These are the two contributing historic9

buildings which we are restoring, and this shows the10

stepping up of the building beyond.11

On Church Street, which is, for some of12

you, this way here, you can kind of see again that the13

existing building line works here. We're salvaging14

the brick, adding the floor here, and then we're doing15

this portion of the building out of sheet metal with a16

very high-quality window system, balconies along the17

face there, although they are set in, as you can kind18

of see here. There is a fairly generous roof canopy19

that sits up here that sort of ties this mass20

together.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You say sheet metal.22

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes. We're looking at23

it. We're not sure we're going to --24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: There's some importance25
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to that? You're not looking at metal panel or --1

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Well, we're considering2

metal panel. One of the things we like about it is3

that if you look at the proportion and the graining of4

this material, --5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.6

MR. FAIRBROTHER: -- it starts to pick7

that up, so it feels like the same piece that was put8

on the face of the building. So that's just by way of9

talking.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.11

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Is it12

reflective material?13

MR. FAIRBROTHER: No. It would be14

turncoated, which is dull.15

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: I'm confused. Are16

you demolishing the existing building to build this17

one?18

MR. FAIRBROTHER: There was an existing19

one-story wing on this that was essentially coming20

down. It was structurally unstable.21

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: In this photograph,22

are we looking at a building beyond your property?23

There's a large building, probably five-stories high,24

brick.25
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MR. NEWELL: That building is Saxon Court,1

a new condominium that was just constructed.2

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Oh. I understand.3

Thank you.4

MR. NEWELL: And there was a one-story5

building, The Spring Works, that was non-contributing6

between the two that we have demolished.7

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: It must be the8

perspective. It just doesn't look like there's room9

in there --10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. It looks pretty11

close.12

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: -- to build this.13

I guess the aerial view shows it on the left. Okay.14

Thank you.15

MR. FAIRBROTHER: You're welcome.16

And then lastly, the alley side, again the17

historic building ends here. This is the alley face18

of this piece and then the massing as it steps up from19

the corner as is shown in the model.20

The ground floor plan for the north21

portion, as you can see -- and again, that line for22

where the historic building comes to is here, and as23

you can see, our parking ramp, our egress stairs, our24

elevator, all occur back here. In this, we devoted25
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the entire face of the building to meet the retail1

requirement. The lobby for the building is here.2

When you get to the second level, you can3

kind of see where we have set back and we're asking4

some relief from this court dimension to really get5

the dimensions of this residential to work well. I6

think we're asking for two feet of relief. It should7

be 20; is that right?8

The other thing that we would like to be9

able to put in there is some outdoor balcony spaces10

for those units as the building climbs up above that11

ground floor, the roof of that ground floor.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You just indicated13

you're looking for relief of two feet, should be 20.14

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What were you talking16

about?17

MR. NEWELL: The court should be 20 feet18

wide at its -- at the base level, it's 18 feet wide,19

but there is also, as I will get into, some balconies20

that intrude into it above.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. So you're going22

to talk about the courts.23

MR. NEWELL: Correct.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Can you pull it25
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up again and just indicate where it is so that we know1

what we're looking at?2

MR. FAIRBROTHER: That is right here.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.4

MR. FAIRBROTHER: And it's actually right5

here on this model.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.7

MR. FAIRBROTHER: At this level, which is8

the fifth level, as you can see on here, that's the9

roof of this or the floor of this, if you will.10

Because all our services are pushed this way, we can't11

get two means of egress. We are providing12

recreational space out here, but we're at the limits13

of what one egress can handle in terms of occupancy.14

So we did this on --15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And what is that limit?16

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Three-hundred and fifty17

feet, square feet. That's located right here.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Which allows the19

calculation for the occupancy of that --20

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- that allows you to22

have one egress off of it.23

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Well, we only have24

access to one means of egress, a direct path, which is25
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to this stair. We can't get back to this stair.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And why is that?2

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Just the historic3

structure below.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You say you can't get5

back to that second --6

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes. There is no7

separate -- for example, we would have to come around8

here and try to get back this way, or come around the9

face of the building and get back this way.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Aren't I seeing a11

corridor that connects the two?12

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Yes, but they have to be13

two separate and distinct means that are rated.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So even though you have15

a physical connection there, it doesn't comply with16

the building code.17

MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right. That's right.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.19

MR. FAIRBROTHER: That's right. In20

theory, what you would have to do is provide another21

rated corridor enclosure to that point. And this is22

true on Parcel A. As we went through, again, we tried23

provide what we could in terms of what the building24

code will allow us in utilizing that roof.25
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That's about it for me. Chip is going to1

catch up on the courts.2

MR. NEWELL: Yes. Thank you, Marc.3

I'm going to give an abbreviated form of4

my full testimony for the sake of time, but I will be5

glad to expand if there are questions, and I will go6

into the court area in more detail.7

Regarding the satisfaction of the burden8

of proof for zoning relief we seek, we believe our9

application satisfies the requirements of Section10

3103.2 of the zoning regulations by reasons of its11

exceptional shape and other extraordinary conditions.12

The site is unique in that it contains13

three historic properties. The properties are being14

preserved and added to based upon the requirements of15

the city's Historic Preservation Review Board, which16

significantly limits the area upon which new17

construction can be placed.18

Specifically, HPRB requested that we place19

the majority of the building on the vacant land at the20

rear of the site, requiring near total lot coverage21

and limiting the potential size of courts.22

The site is also unique in that its size23

is larger than typical lots in the area and its shape24

is unusual. The site is unusually large, comprising25
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all but one lot on the western side of the 1500 block1

of 14th Street. Its shape is unusual because of the2

narrow strip which was formerly a public alley which3

links the north and south portions.4

We also believe that our application5

complies with the second prong of the area variance6

test because a strict application of the zoning7

regulations would result in a peculiar and exceptional8

practical difficulty.9

The three historic buildings located on10

the site and the site's unusual size and shape have11

significantly constrained the renovation, rehab and12

reuse of the site and resulted in practical13

difficulty.14

The result is an overall architectural15

design that contains additions on top of, immediately16

adjacent to the historic structures, rather than new17

construction on a vacant lot. These additions cannot18

comply with lot occupancy and court requirements19

because insufficient space exists on the site to20

accommodate all building components.21

Furthermore, because of the constraints of22

the existing buildings, all the parking which is23

required by market conditions and community24

organizations has to be on the limited vacant area,25
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again making it not feasible to comply with the lot1

occupancy and court requirements.2

Specifically with regard to courts, the3

need to accommodate the existing historic buildings4

and overall architectural design has impacted our5

ability to comply with those requirements. We propose6

a closed court -- and, Mark, if you would point out7

where these courts are as I speak here, please -- we8

propose a closed court on the ground level of the rear9

of the south portion which opens onto the closed10

portion of the alley. This closed court is five feet11

narrower in width than the requirement under Section12

776.3, and 100 square feet less than the requirement13

in 776.4.14

Now, on the second level of the south15

portion, there is an open court which is eight feet16

less than the required width in Section 776.3.17

Finally, on the second level of the north portion,18

there is an open court which is two feet less than the19

required width in 776.3.20

As a result of ongoing revisions in the21

layout, we have submitted revised plans that depict22

modest changes in these open courts on the north and23

south portions specifically relating to balconies24

shown in the drawings submitted with the application.25
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Certain points of those balconies extend into the1

courts. The extension of the balconies have reduced2

the open court width at those points as measured by3

the law, but at other points not affected by the4

balconies, the size of the courts remain the same.5

These same practical difficulties for lot6

occupancy and courts adversely impact our ability to7

provide the amount of required residential recreation8

space. Because of site constraints discussed9

previously, we propose to devote approximately 1,88010

square feet of interior and exterior open space to11

residential recreation space.12

In addition, a significant majority of the13

units, all the units on the south portion and most of14

them on the north portion, will include private15

terraces and balconies which will function as private16

recreation space. If the public and private17

residential recreation space were combined, the total18

amount would equal 13,820 square feet, or 17 percent.19

No additional outdoor recreation space is20

reasonably available. The setbacks on the massing of21

the buildings required by HPRB result in small roof22

areas, and these reduced areas and the space devoted23

to mechanical systems, plus the building code24

requirements that Mark referred to which limit the25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

132

amount of roof area that can be devoted to recreation1

space served by one means of egress and requiring that2

rooftop public space must have elevator access,3

restrict our ability to provide public recreation4

space on the roofs.5

The latter building code mandate would6

require elevator machine room height in excess of7

building height allowed and therefore result in a8

building not in compliance with the zoning code.9

On the ground level, no additional outdoor10

recreation space can be provided because of the lot11

coverage resulting from the HPRB requirements.12

Furthermore, the space dedicated to retail in order to13

meet the Uptown Arts Mixed Use Overlay District14

requirement of 50 percent retail space limits our15

ability to provide indoor residential recreation16

space.17

Under a third prong of the variance test,18

the substantial benefits to the community, including19

underground parking, ground-floor retail, and quality20

residential space, and the lack of adverse impacts21

from the variances requested, result in no substantial22

detriment to the public good and no substantial23

impairment of the intent, purpose and integrity of the24

zoning regulations and map.25
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The proposed development is consistent1

with a comprehensive plan generalized land use map2

designation for this site of moderate density3

residential land use and meets the Uptown Arts special4

treatment objectives.5

In addition to the considerable public and6

community benefits of the proposal, our project and7

specifically the requested variances will not create8

any adverse impacts or detrimental effects on the9

public. The lot occupancy variance does not cause any10

light or air to be blocked or result in any adverse11

effect on any building -- on any abutting residential12

owners or tenants because there are no abutting13

residents on P Street and the abutting building on14

Church Street contains a blank wall.15

Similarly, the court variances will not16

have any adverse effects for the same reasons and, in17

addition, because the open and closed courts open onto18

the adjacent alleyway or an adjacent blank wall. The19

residential recreation space variance will have no20

adverse impact because of the extensive amount of21

private recreation space provided in the form of22

terraces, balconies and similar areas.23

Finally, in order to allow for design24

flexibility if needed as a result of final HPRB review25
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of our construction plans and to allow for a modest1

amount of flexibility in the location of balconies and2

the two courts, we ask that the Board approve as a3

condition to the order the attached provision, a copy4

of which is being handed up now.5

Once again, based on the merits of our6

project, we request the approval by the Board of our7

application. I would be glad to answer any questions8

you may have.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What is the condition10

that you are submitting now?11

MR. NEWELL: The condition -- I will read12

it. The applicant shall have design flexibility to A)13

make any revisions required by Historic Preservation14

Review Board or the Historic Preservation Division,15

Office of Planning and B) increase or decrease the16

size of the balconies and the courts, provided,17

however, that the maximum projection of any balcony18

into a court shall not be greater than six feet.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Oh. I see. Okay. I20

don't know. Do we want to delegate authority to HPRB?21

I think we ought to hold it ourselves, frankly.22

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Me, too.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Makes some24

sense.25
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Quickly, just clarification in terms of1

the court, it is your testimony that, in fact --2

obviously the court and the closed courts are3

important requirements for their minimum size because4

you do want to create the availability of light,5

maybe, but certainly air, circulation.6

The setbacks that you have created by the7

lesser dimensions of the court you don't believe will8

impair any sort of ventilation or light coming into9

the units, yours or adjacent?10

MR. NEWELL: We don't believe so. There11

are no units adjacent on the other side of the courts.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.13

MR. NEWELL: And the narrow court, the14

most narrow court, which is on the north side of the15

south portion, we have made the units that face onto16

the court two-story units with glass that extends the17

full height of the two stories.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So the narrow portion19

on the south parcel that fronts the easement alley --20

MR. FAIRBROTHER: This model is built21

somewhat inaccurately. This building, the pawnshop,22

actually steps down.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. Towards the24

back.25
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MR. FAIRBROTHER: Right. And so we're1

talking about this portion here, and so those units2

that sit within that have one floor that's adjacent to3

it and then one floor that's above it.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And then on the5

top stories, top levels, is that the same condition,6

or the units run individually on those levels?7

MR. NEWELL: Above there, these units are8

one-story units.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And have you10

thought about -- say, perhaps, that that site is11

developed with a building of similar height to yours,12

which would create a continuation of that13

nonconforming court, what would be the impact of those14

units on the top and just below the uppermost level,15

those units?16

MR. NEWELL: There are two units on the17

top three floors. One unit is a corner unit that has18

primary exposure to the east.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.20

MR. NEWELL: And the other unit, which is21

the unit -- westernmost unit has its main living area22

at the westernmost end, which would be behind anything23

--24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.25
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MR. NEWELL: -- that could be built.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see. So the impact2

potential, future potential, may be two to three3

units.4

MR. NEWELL: That's correct. And it would5

not be the living portion of any unit because of the6

way the living portions are allocated.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see. So you wouldn't8

see a lot of major difficulty if that building was9

redeveloped. Of course, I can imagine that the condo10

association would be in great opposition to that as11

your nice views would be diminished.12

MR. NEWELL: Yes, sir.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: But it certainly is a14

possibility.15

MR. NEWELL: Yes.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.17

Any other questions, clarifications?18

(No response.)19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good. I think it's20

time well spent. This is complicated just in terms of21

the amount of different things that are going on and22

the different sites to look at.23

What is 15 percent of the GFA which would24

be the corresponding requirement for the residential25
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recreation space? What's the square footage, do you1

know, approximately or exactly? If 17 percent is2

13,000 --3

MR. NEWELL: That's what I was looking at.4

It would be about 12,400.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And you are6

providing 1,800. All right.7

Any other questions?8

(No response.)9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: If not, let's move on10

to Office of Planning's report. They can get right to11

it.12

REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF PLANNING13

BY STEPHEN MORDFIN14

MR. MORDFIN: Good afternoon, Chairman,15

members of the Board. My name is Stephen Mordfin with16

the Office of Planning. This is BZA Application17

Number 16999 for a mixed-use building at 14th Street,18

P Street and Church Street.19

The subject property is located within the20

C-3-A District and the Uptown Arts Mixed-Use Overlay21

District and is located within the Greater 14th Street22

Historic District. The application proposes two23

mixed-use buildings connected by a 65-space24

underground parking garage. The northern portion of25
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the development is containing 77 apartments and 5,0201

square feet of retail space; the southern portion is2

to contain 18 apartments and 6,270 square feet of3

retail space.4

The application requests six area5

variances:6

1) To increase the minimum lot occupancy7

from 75 percent to 87.3 percent;8

2) To decrease the minimum residential9

recreation space from 15 percent to 2.3 percent;10

3) To decrease the minimum width of an11

open court in the northern portion of the building12

from 20 feet to 15 feet;13

4) To decrease the minimum width of an14

open court in the southern portion of the building15

from 20 feet to six feet;16

5) To decrease the minimum width of a17

closed court in the southern portion of the building18

from 15 feet to ten feet; and19

6) To decrease the minimum area of the20

same closed court from 350 square feet to 100 square21

feet.22

The subject property is unusual in that it23

is in the shape of the letter C, is improved with24

three historic buildings that cannot be removed, and25
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has an alley dividing it in two.1

The portion of the site under the alley2

which has been closed is only 22 feet, four inches in3

width. The application requests relief from the4

maximum lot occupancy permitted due to HPRB's5

recommendation that the new construction be shifted6

toward the back of the property and away from the 14th7

Street frontage and the applicant's desire to provide8

parking underneath the structure while limiting the9

amount of underground parking below the historic10

structures.11

The application requests relief from the12

amount of residential recreation space because most of13

the apartments will be provided with private14

recreation space and because of the difficulty in15

providing large portions of rooftop space due to the16

stepping back of the building as recommended by HPRB,17

which is the unusual situation in this case.18

In addition, the amount of residential19

recreation space provided when compared with only the20

apartment units for which prior recreation space is21

not provided is 17 percent more than the 15 percent22

minimum.23

The application requests relief from the24

width of an open court in the northern portion of the25
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building. The width of this court is adversely1

affected by balconies on upper levels which do not2

have the same impact on the court as a solid wall.3

The unusual situation in this case is that if the4

court is provided as required, which is a function of5

the building height, it would occupy 26 percent of the6

building's width.7

The application also requests relief from8

the width of an open court in the southern portion of9

the building. Similar to the other court, this one,10

if provided as required, would encompass one-third of11

the building's width, which is the unusual situation12

in this case.13

The application is requesting relief from14

the width and area of a closed court. The unusual15

situation is that this court is designed as a loading16

space and not as a means for provision of light and17

air into the building, and the unusual situation in18

this case is that this court is not intended to19

function as a traditional court.20

The Office of Planning recommends that21

this application be approved as submitted by the22

applicant. That concludes the presentation by the23

Office of Planning.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you very much.25
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Any questions from the Board for Office of1

Planning?2

(No response.)3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Does the applicant have4

any cross-examination of the Office of Planning?5

MR. DePUY: None, Mr. Chairman.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You are in receipt of7

the Office of Planning memo?8

MR. DePUY: Yes, we have.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Good.10

Thank you very much. It's an excellent report.11

I have one issue in terms of the six12

variances. Are we not talking -- could your items 513

and 6 not be combined? We're looking at the minimum14

width and the minimum area. That is the same court,15

is it not?16

MR. MORDFIN: They are the same court. It17

is for the minimum width and the minimum area of the18

same court.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.20

MR. MORDFIN: So yes, they could be21

combined.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. I don't think23

there is any complication. I think we know what we're24

looking at.25
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Okay. Anything else?1

(No response.)2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Let's move3

on, then, to the ANC-2F, which we have submitted4

Exhibit Number 22. Is a representative of the ANC5

here?6

(No response.)7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Ms.8

Renshaw, do you have that?9

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Yes. The10

letter is dated March 16th, 2003, and it's signed by11

Helen Kramer, the chair, and she states that 3F -- or12

2F, rather, met on March 5th, 2003. It was publicly13

advertised, a quorum was present, and 2F voted five to14

zero to support the application of U.S. Property15

Development Corporation for the variances cited from16

the maximum lot occupancy requirement of subsection17

772, from the minimum area and other requirements18

pertaining to the residential recreation space under19

subsection 773, and from the minimum court with20

requirement of subsection 776 in a C-3-A Arts21

District.22

They feel that the site is unique,23

containing three historic properties; unusual shape24

due to the public alley which runs through the25
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property; and the strict application would result in1

peculiar and exceptional practical difficulty for the2

applicant.3

They state further that the height4

restriction and required ground-floor retail usage do5

not allow for recreational space in addition to the6

private balconies and terraces being provided.7

So in the view of the Commission, the8

granting of the variance will provide substantial9

benefits to the community, notably promoting the10

neighborhood's historic character, providing needed11

street-level retail and expanding the area's housing12

supply.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you.14

Are there any questions from the Board15

about the ANC? No further elaboration?16

(No response.)17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Does the applicant have18

any?19

MR. DePUY: None, Mr. Chairman.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well.21

I don't have any notes of any other22

attendant government reports or submissions on this.23

Is the applicant aware of any others?24

MR. DePUY: No, Mr. Chairman.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Any other1

questions from the Board? There was some question2

early on -- I know there was some discussion about the3

historic certification for the contributing nature of4

the buildings which we will be getting, and it is also5

your testimony, contention, that the regulations --6

that that would relieve from any loading requirements;7

is that correct?8

MR. DePUY: That's correct.9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. And that is10

actually outlined in the regulations. Yes?11

MR. DePUY: Yes.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And somewhere late last13

night, I noted what section that was; however, I'm not14

pointing it out at this point.15

MR. DePUY: Mr. Chairman, it's section16

2200.5.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Which reads18

similarly to the section on parking which gives the19

relief for historic structures from the base20

requirements if they were built pre-'58; is that21

correct?22

MR. DePUY: Yes. There's a comparable23

provision with respect to parking. Even though24

parking is provided, technically we're entitled to a25
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waiver from parking as well based on historic nature1

of the project.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Good.3

Let's go to testimony at this point. Is4

anyone here present to give testimony for Application5

16999 of the U.S. Property either in favor or in6

support? We can certainly clear the table for7

everybody that wants to give testimony. Not seeing8

anybody approach the table, we can move on, then, and9

go through the written submissions in support or10

opposition.11

Is the applicant aware of the submission12

that came into this office and has been delivered to13

the Board? It was received on the 21st of March. It14

appears to be from an S. Smith for the Harrison15

family.16

MR. DePUY: We were given a copy of this17

this morning, yes. We have read it.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What is this?19

MR. DePUY: The submission that you are20

referring to on behalf of the Harrison family, we21

reviewed it this morning for the first time and we're22

not aware of these concerns having been raised before.23

I would point out that they seem to go to24

non-zoning issues, namely closing the alley on a25
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permanent basis, it alleged illegal demolition and1

something about an entrance and signs on the building,2

none of which are before the Board.3

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: A question.4

Was this property purchased from the Harrison family?5

MR. NEWELL: Not that I'm aware of. My6

partner, U.S. Property Development Corporation, has7

owned the property for 15 or 20 years, so I'm not8

aware of it being purchased --9

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Is there any10

connection of the Harrison family?11

MR. NEWELL: None that I am aware of at12

all. It's the first time I've heard of it in13

connection with this property.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Do you know who the15

Harrison family is?16

MR. NEWELL: No. I have no idea.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Let's move on.18

MR. DePUY: Mr. Chairman, a housekeeping19

item. We have copies of, for the record, photographs20

of the model.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent.22

MR. DePUY: And we have a copy of Mr.23

Newell's testimony to submit for the record as well.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent.25
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All right. With that, I don't have any1

other notes of submission that I'm aware of. Is the2

applicant aware of any addition submissions that we3

have not covered?4

MR. DePUY: No, we're not.5

(Pause.)6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Forgive the7

pause. There's a little organizing that I need to do8

up here.9

We do have also submitted in the record10

was the -- I believe it's an e-mail exchange11

requesting from this office a plat, and I think that12

was going towards understanding the alley and the13

relationship to the alley, and actually the plat was14

showing a closing. I think we have gotten15

clarification on that and where it is in the process,16

and we will have to just address that as we move17

forward.18

MR. DePUY: A plat was submitted in19

response to that request, Mr. Chairman.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. I know. We have21

it. I guess direct to the point, it wouldn't have22

been at all clear if that plat showed that the alley23

wasn't there or had been closed. Okay.24

Now, to that, the assembly of all these --25
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I mean, you talked a little bit about the uniqueness1

of the shape and size of this. This was an assemblage2

of numerous lots; is that correct?3

MR. NEWELL: Yes, that's correct.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And that assembly took5

place several decades ago; is that correct?6

MR. NEWELL: About 15 years ago.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see. Okay. So some8

time ago. Okay.9

Any other questions by the Board at this10

time?11

(No response.)12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: If not, then I can ask13

for any closing remarks and summations.14

MR. DePUY: I will be very brief, Mr.15

Chairman, and members.16

We believe we have established that the17

application satisfies the three tests required for18

area variances with respect to the zoning relief19

necessary pertaining to lot occupancy, pertaining to20

residential recreation space, and pertaining to the21

courts, and we would ask that the Board approve the22

application. Thank you.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you very much.24

Okay. Is the Board prepared to move ahead25
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with this today? I would like to hear if people are1

not. Of course, we do have -- there would be some2

impact -- clearly if the alley wasn't permanently3

closed, there would be some impact to what is being4

proposed in the design here. Is that your5

understanding, Mr. DePuy?6

MR. DePUY: I failed to mention earlier7

that the alley was actually closed on an emergency8

basis --9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: From the Council.10

MR. DePUY: By the Council. So the alley11

is technically closed.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: So what is the13

congressional --14

MR. DePUY: The congressional review is of15

the permanent piece of legislation which -- the16

temporary is a 90-day emergency.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.18

MEMBER ZAIDAN: That alley closure -- the19

legislation has already been submitted to the Council?20

MR. DePUY: It has been approved by the21

Council, signed by the mayor, submitted to Congress,22

and the 30-day congressional review period is expected23

to expire on March 31st, thereabouts.24

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. But let's say1

they overturned it, then it would not be closed.2

MR. DePUY: That's correct.3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. And I'm just4

trying to project out the implications. You know, I'm5

sure it's slim, the odds of that happening, but --6

okay. So just laying it all out for the Board, we do7

have that, we do have the submission of the historic8

certification that will be coming in. In terms of the9

-- we do also have before us the applicant's suggested10

condition that might go into the order and it is11

essentially giving design flexibility as they move12

through the reviewal process. And that is what I13

have.14

With all that, does anyone object to15

moving ahead with this today, this afternoon?16

(No response.)17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Not hearing any major18

objections, then I think we ought to proceed, and I19

think it would be advantageous to have our20

deliberation occur with a motion, and that motion21

would be approval of Application 16999 of the U.S.22

Property Development Corp for the variance of the lot23

occupancy requirements, the variance of the24

residential recreation space, also the variance from25
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the court requirements which would allow for the1

construction of an apartment building and a2

ground-floor retail space at the premises of 1401 and3

1413 P Street, 1502 and 1506 14th Street, Northwest,4

1510 to 1520 14th Street, Northwest, and 1410 Church5

Street, Northwest, and I would ask for a second.6

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Second.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you, Ms. Renshaw.8

Clearly we're looking at the residential9

rec, court and lot occupancy. I think the tests for10

the uniqueness has been set forth and I think runs11

through all of the variances requested. That is, the12

historic structures -- there are several on each of13

the areas. They have been required to be preserved,14

which we have heard testimony on the encumbrances to15

that, the footprint itself not being able to go below16

them and also actually maintaining some of the17

original interior structure.18

One of the other unique aspects that I19

think was addressed but wasn't necessarily directly20

addressed into the uniqueness test is the requirements21

of the arts and retail overlay. It was part of this22

presentation.23

But let me speak to that a little bit,24

about how that -- I look at that as somewhat of a25
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unique situation. Certainly you couldn't rest an1

entire case on that because the area has that2

uniqueness to it. But when you start trying to3

balance finding square footage in a building, first of4

all, the -- how do you say? -- the massing of this5

project lends itself to some difficulty in how it6

deals with the unique shaped site and deals with the7

historic structure, but then as you try and carve out8

square footage for residential recreation space which9

has to be common to the occupants, the residents of10

the building, has to be used for recreating, an easy11

place to put that is where residential units would not12

be. One of those would be street-front. So you have13

a balance between providing retail or providing14

residential recreation space.15

I think the choice has been correctly made16

here, and that is especially for P Street and 14th;17

importantly, it fits perfectly into what it should be18

and, in fact, what the overlay states. So my point19

being, there is somewhat of a uniqueness in the20

competition for square footage of residential21

recreation and the requirements for the arts retail22

overlay.23

A practical difficulty again coming out of24

the uniqueness of the large unique shape, also25
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historic structures, clearly we've seen that the1

massing of this building has to move. That massing I2

think directly relates to the fact that our lot3

occupancy is a bit above that required, and the4

massing then lends itself to some difficulty in making5

conforming courts.6

Courts -- I think we went through the7

importance of courts for light and air, and I think we8

looked at how it was accommodated and any sort of9

possibility of major detrimental impact and the10

difficulty, in fact, in providing conforming courts.11

The third, whether it would impair the12

intent and integrity of the zone plan and map, I think13

was easily addressed. Clearly this fits within not14

only the comprehensive plan of providing residential15

along the area, it fits within the overlay in terms of16

providing the retail space, and I don't believe that17

it would have nor did we hear any evidence to the fact18

that it would impair intent or integrity.19

I would hear from others if they would20

like to speak to the motion. Ms. Renshaw as seconder21

is welcome to begin that.22

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Well, it's a23

challenging project you have before you, and I think24

that it is going to do a great deal to revitalize that25
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area of 14th Street and P Streets, and I would like to1

hear that it is a project that would be completed with2

dispatch and it would be workable within, I'm going to3

say one year. Am I right?4

MR. NEWELL: Our current schedule has us5

starting construction in the fall.6

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: And it will7

take you until what?8

MR. NEWELL: It will take us about 149

months to complete, so it would be the end of next10

year is when we would expect completion.11

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: All right. So12

we should be back on the street corner looking for the13

ribbon-cutting in 14 months.14

MR. NEWELL: Absolutely. And I will15

probably look forward to it more than you.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Any other17

comments to the motion?18

(No response.)19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, before we call20

the vote on this, let me put out two directions.21

First of all, in terms of the flexibility22

of the design, I don't think we need to condition that23

as part of the order, but rather we can write that24

into the order and note from the Board as a consensus25
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that we will allow flexibility in design as we have1

done numerous times before, noting the fact that there2

needs to be some flexibility.3

Second direction, and I think we can find4

this as a finding or an observation by the Board, we5

would give strong direction to continue developing the6

beautiful articulation of the elevation specifically7

on 14th Street, that corner and that element, and8

along P Street. This Board obviously isn't the one to9

tell you how to do it, but we would applaud and10

encourage you to continue in that frame, and I think11

really that's what Mr. Parsons was going to, is how12

important that is, and, frankly, it's important from13

your end also in terms of the value of the product14

that you are going to produce.15

That would be it for me, then, unless16

there are others that need to add. Yes, Mr. Parsons.17

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Thank you.18

I find myself in a very awkward situation.19

I find the project to be a terrific project, and from20

our jurisdiction, all of the variances I think are21

worthy of our support. But I find the tower at 14th22

and P to be awkward, to be out of scale and out of23

place with its angular nature and its cap. I know we24

have no jurisdiction over it, but I feel so strongly25
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about it that I'm going to abstain from the vote. I1

cannot vote for this project and support it.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well said.3

Okay. Anything else?4

(No response.)5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Then let me ask for all6

those in favor of the motion to grant to signify by7

saying aye.8

(Chorus of ayes.)9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And opposed?10

(No response.)11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Abstaining?12

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Yes.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Why don't we record14

that vote.15

MS. BAILEY: The vote is recorded as16

four-zero-one to approve the application. Mr. Griffis17

made the motion; Mrs. Renshaw second; Mr. Etherly and18

Mr. Zaidan are in support; and Mr. Parsons is19

abstaining.20

Mr. Chairman, I'm assuming this -- is this21

a summary order, and also, if so, you had requested22

the HPRB certification. Would we hold the order up23

until that has been received? In other words, would24

we not issue the order until -- before we receive that25
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certification?1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good questions. The2

first one, yes, we wouldn't issue the order until the3

record is complete. The second question, I do not see4

any reason why we couldn't have a summary order on5

this unless we were not able to put in the direction6

of flexibility into a summary order.7

MS. BAILEY: I believe that can be done.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. That being said,9

is there any objection to a summary order from the10

applicant's point of view?11

MR. DePUY: None.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Then I think we13

can facilitate that.14

Anything else?15

(No response.)16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good. Thank you very17

much. Have a great afternoon.18

Is there anything else before the Board in19

the morning session on the 25th of March?20

MS. BAILEY: That's all for the morning21

session, Mr. Chairman.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Then I can23

adjourn.24

(Whereupon, the hearing recessed and25
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reconvened at 1:39 p.m.)1

2
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A-F-T-E-R-N-O-O-N S-E-S-S-I-O-N1

(1:39 p.m.)2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good afternoon to3

everybody. Let me call the 25 March 2003 afternoon4

session of the District of Columbia's Board of Zoning5

Adjustment to order. My name is Geoff Griffis,6

Chairperson. Joining me today, and sadly for the last7

time, this afternoon is the Vice Chair, Ms. Anne8

Renshaw. Also with us is Mr. Etherly to my right9

representing the National Capital Planning Commission10

is Mr. Zaidan, and representing the Zoning Commission11

for this afternoon is Mr. Parsons.12

Copies of today's hearing agenda are13

available to you on a chair, actually, it looks like,14

in the hearing room. If more copies are needed, we15

could certainly make those available or you can just16

indicate to staff.17

I will run through this very quickly. Of18

course, this is the requirement and my opening to run19

through all this information. So getting on with20

that, please be aware that all proceedings before this21

Board are being recorded. You will need to speak into22

the microphone. The microphone should be on. Also,23

if you have not -- or you should fill out witness24

cards before presenting to the Board, and the witness25
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cards go to the recorder, who is sitting to my right.1

Let me remind everyone present also to2

turn off cell phones and beepers so that we don't have3

any disruption to the proceedings as we go forward.4

The order of procedures and special5

exceptions and variances is, of course, presentation6

of the case and witnesses by the applicant, government7

reports, ANC report. Fourth would be persons in8

support of the application; fifth would be persons in9

opposition; sixth would be closing remarks by10

applicant. Cross-examination of witnesses is11

permitted by the applicant and parties in the case.12

The ANC in which the property is located is13

automatically a party in the case.14

The record will be closed at the15

conclusion of the hearing except for any material that16

is requested by the Board, and the Board will be very17

specific in what is requested and when it is to be18

submitted into the Office of Zoning. After that is19

received, of course the record will finally close and20

no other information would be accepted into the21

record.22

The Sunshine Act requires that this Board23

conduct public hearings in the open and before the24

public. The Board may, however, consistent with its25
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rules of procedures and the Sunshine Act, enter1

executive session during or after a hearing on a case.2

This would be for purposes of deliberation or3

reviewing the record.4

Decisions of this Board in contested cases5

must be based exclusively on the record, so we ask6

that people present today not engage Board members in7

any type of conversation so that we don't give the8

appearance to the contrary.9

We will make every effort, and I can10

pretty much guarantee today, which I can't always do,11

that we will conclude this afternoon's session by six12

o'clock. If, of course, we run into major unknowns, I13

will update on our schedule as we get closer to the14

afternoon.15

At this time, the Board will entertain any16

preliminary matters. Preliminary matters are those17

which relate to whether a case will or should be heard18

today such as requests for postponements, continuances19

or withdrawals, or whether proper or adequate notice20

of the hearing has been provided. If you are not21

prepared to go forward with a case today or if you22

believe that the Board should not proceed with a case23

today, now would be a time to approach, and I will24

take an indication of someone having a preliminary25
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matter by coming forward and having a seat at the1

table in front of us. If I do not see anybody, I will2

ask staff, and also wish a great afternoon to our very3

capable and professional Office of Zoning staff who is4

with us today, Ms. Bailey, also Mr. Moy. Mr. Nyarku5

is also here and present with us, out once in a while;6

and representing the Corporation Counsel is Ms.7

Monroe, who I promise will be here at some point.8

That being said, Ms. Bailey, any9

preliminary matters for the Board this afternoon?10

PRELIMINARY MATTERS11

MS. BAILEY: Yes, Mr. Chairman. It has to12

do with Application Number 16995, Council of Co-Owners13

of the Capitol Part-Two Condominium. That application14

was withdrawn, Mr. Chairman.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good. Thank you. So16

no action by the Board needed to be taken.17

MS. BAILEY: Absolutely, Mr. Chairman.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: In which case let us19

call the case for the afternoon.20

APPLICATION OF THE MOST WORSHIPFUL21

PRINCE HALL GRAND LODGE22

16938 ANC-1B23

MS. BAILEY: Application Number 16938 of24

Most Worshipful Prince Hall Grand Lodge, pursuant to25
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11 DCMR 3104.1 for a special exception to establish an1

accessory parking lot having 21 parking spaces under2

section 214, and pursuant to 11 DCMR 3103.2, for a3

variance from the requirement that the parking spaces4

be located within 200 feet of the use to which they5

are accessory under section 214.3, and a variance from6

the requirement that accessory parking spaces be7

contiguous to or separated only by an alley from the8

use to which they are accessory under subsection9

214.4. The property is located in the R-4 District at10

premises 1902 and 1906 Vermont Avenue, Northwest, and11

it's in Square 333 on Lot 827.12

Mr. Chairman, this is a continuation of a13

hearing last week. At that time, the Board indicated14

that closing arguments would be made today by the15

applicant. The Board set a date for findings of fact16

to be submitted by April 29th and a decision scheduled17

for May 6th. As I said, this is a continuation.18

Closing arguments are to for presented today by the19

applicant, Mr. Chairman.20

And then lastly, there is a motion from21

the Westminster Neighborhood Association for judgment,22

and if I'm not mistaken, that motion was never23

decided.24

Those are my comments at the moment, Mr.25
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Chairman.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Thank you.2

In regards to the motion for judgment, I3

thought our direction was that that should come4

forward in the case presentation. The representative5

from WNA is here; is that correct?6

MR. JOHNSON: That's correct. Lynn7

Johnson for the record. Good afternoon. In fact, I8

think there was some discussion that it could be made9

during the opposition's case; however, as you well10

remember, the testimony ended after eight p.m. that11

evening and it simply, I think, in the lateness of the12

hour, did not get heard and certainly probably should13

not have been heard at that late hour, so I would ask14

that we give it now.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. How much time do16

you need to present your motion for judgment and17

what's involved in this?18

MR. JOHNSON: It's only argument, no19

witnesses, no questions; simply argument of the20

regulations and as to why the judgment should for21

entered. Less than 30 minutes.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Does the23

applicant representative have an opinion on this? Can24

you come forward if you do?25
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MR. NUNLEY: Well, number one, I had no1

notification as to what this motion entails, but it2

would seem that to present the motion would take3

considerably less than 30 minutes.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. So your concern5

is the time.6

MR. NUNLEY: My concern is time and also7

the fact that I have no clue what --8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. Neither do we.9

Mr. Johnson, you didn't avail yourself to10

put the motion in writing and submit it to the Board;11

is that correct?12

MR. JOHNSON: I did not.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Any objection to14

hearing the motion at this time from the Board?15

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: No objection,16

Mr. Chairman, but we would just like to ask if it17

could be condensed a bit shorter than 30 minutes.18

MR. JOHNSON: I will do my best for sure.19

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Thank you.20

MR. JOHNSON: And I would ask for21

suggestions if I'm not condensing it enough.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.23

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Thank you.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: My recollection has25
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been refreshed, sir, that your testimony, when we1

left, you indicated it might take about six minutes to2

present your motion for judgment, in which case we3

would love to hold you to that. But why don't we,4

rather than waste more time on this, just move right5

into it. I can tell you, as I indicated last time I6

think fairly directly, it would be a large stretch for7

this Board to suddenly up and bench decision based on8

a motion, but we also encourage the accumulation of9

all the facts attendant to all cases.10

So with that, let us proceed. I am hoping11

that we don't get into a lot of oral arguments and12

discussion, but with your motion, we will hear it, and13

we will then hear the applicant's reaction to it.14

We have -- is the ANC represented today?15

So the ANC is also here. So we have all the parties16

in the case present. Does the ANC have any opinion,17

objection or support for hearing the motion for18

judgment at this time?19

MR. SPALDING: No, we don't.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Could you just21

state your name, please?22

MR. SPALDING: Philip Spalding, ANC 1B-02.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you, Mr.24

Spalding.25
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All right. Let's proceed, Mr. Johnson.1

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.2

Members of the Board, good afternoon. You3

are aware that the Masons have the burden of proof4

here. It's their application under section 3119.2.5

As the Chair has also indicated earlier at the6

beginning of this hearing, due to the Mason's failure7

to apply for zoning approval for over ten years after8

the expiration of their last BZA order, and due9

possibly to the Mason's failure to abide by various10

requirements of the order, the Board determined that11

any argument relying on the existing use shall not be12

considered in this case.13

I have a short comment on whether this is14

an area variance or a use variance, and I don't think15

it's relevant because I don't think the Board needs to16

get there, but before I go forward as to the standard,17

it appears that -- I mean certainly here the variances18

are requested for accessory parking regulations. They19

are asking for two variances. We know that the area20

variance relates to side yards, rear yards, the kind21

of things that alter the character of the zoned22

district, and we know that use variances seek to --23

seeks a use that's not ordinarily prohibited in that24

particular district. Having said that, what do we25
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have here where we're having the Masons park 201

accessory parking spaces in a residentially zoned lot,2

if you will?3

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Mr. Johnson, let me4

interrupt you. It sounds like we're going well into5

testimony, if not summation and conclusion of your6

case. Give me the motion and then you can back it up.7

MR. JOHNSON: Okay. All right.8

The Masons are asking for one exemption,9

two variances. Different standards for each one. If10

we look to the variance first, they've got two11

variances, 214.3, more than 200 feet; 214.4,12

noncontiguous or separated by an alley.13

The Masons themselves have the burden, as14

we said. They have come forward with no reason why15

either -- why a variance should be granted for either16

one of those regulations. They have stated that the17

reason is because the parking lot is more than 20018

feet because it's not contiguous. They're simply19

stating the fact of their noncompliance. That can't20

be a reason for asking for a variance, and as I've21

heard the testimony, it's the only reason I have heard22

as to why they should have a variance.23

The Board need go no further if, in fact,24

they haven't shown a reason for getting a variance,25
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but if the Board does go further, then we have to look1

at whether the Masons have met the standards set out2

by section 3103.2, which is the standard for obtaining3

a variance. It's codified in the Code also, and I'm4

sure the Board is well aware of it, but it's confusing5

to me and I just want to basically summarize it so6

that I can argue it.7

It seemed to be a three-part test, number8

one, then each of the three parts have two parts to9

them with the first part being in the disjunctive.10

The Masons may meet either Part A or Part B of Part 1,11

and either Part A or Part B of Part 2, but they must12

meet both parts of Part C. So what are we talking13

about here? And this is forgetting the variance.14

They must show that, by reason of 1A, I'm calling it,15

narrowness, shallowness, shape of the property at the16

time of the adoption of the regulations -- I simply17

call that size or shape -- or Part 1B, extraordinary18

or exceptional situation or condition of the property19

-- I just call that a unique condition for Part 1B --20

they must show one or the other. If they don't, they21

don't even get to the second part or the third part.22

But where are you in here is they don't get to part --23

they don't show us Part 1A, they don't show us Part24

1B.25
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Applying the first part of this test, the1

size or shape, the Masons have to show the Board that2

because of the size or shape -- I'm sorry -- because3

of the size or shape, they are entitled to a variance,4

something unique about the size or the shape.5

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Actually, let me6

summarize it for you. We look at the variance test as7

a three-prong test. First, there's a uniqueness,8

there's a uniqueness of the property, which you9

understood. Second, out of that uniqueness arises10

some practical difficulty or, for a use variance,11

hardship. So out of that uniqueness comes practical12

difficulty or hardship. Once you can prove that that13

is the case, then you move on to the third test, and14

that is that if this was granted, the relief sought,15

that it would not impair the intent or the integrity16

of the zone plan and map, meaning it wouldn't throw17

the zoning totally out of whack if the relief was18

given. That says it right in the regulations.19

Actually not; I made that up. But nonetheless, we're20

aware of that. I'm still not hearing a motion. I'm21

hearing great argument on your side, but that's not22

what's necessarily appropriate at this point. For23

instance, we often have a motion to dismiss based on24

timeliness, that all the information of the25
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application wasn't put in on time or for some nature1

of that.2

What you might do and what I'm hearing you3

say is you want a motion for us to deny based on the4

fact that the test was not met by the applicant.5

Well, again, I'm not sure this Board is in the6

position or would avail themselves to make a bench7

decision on that until, one, we hear the closing, and8

two, until we have the additional information, which9

we have asked for that submitted.10

So I don't hear anything at this point,11

unless other Board members hear something that I do12

not, that would move us away from a decisionmaking on13

the 6th of May.14

MR. JOHNSON: You shaved ten minutes off15

my argument, first of all.16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.17

MR. JOHNSON: But second of all, you may18

have booted it all the way out. What I'm trying to do19

in the motion for judgment is really, to be more20

specific, this Board, having the application before21

it, is going to approve it, approve it with22

conditions, or deny it, and, on reflection, using23

"judgment" is an improper choice of words on my part.24

You don't give a judgment here; you really give a25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

173

denial of the application. What I should say to you1

is what I'm really trying to do is say the Board2

should deny this application, not at the end of the3

case, but when I initially raised it -- it was before4

Westminster Neighborhood Association even put on their5

case -- simply saying because of the standards that6

the Masons must meet under especially 3103.2, they7

haven't met it; therefore you don't need to hear8

anything else. And given the fact that the Board9

doesn't -- likes to have everything come in, I think10

this here is so clear that they haven't met it that11

they didn't need to go any further.12

Of course, giving the argument now today13

saves you at most the closing, of which, as I14

understand it, applicant's closing includes no15

evidence, if you will, so it wouldn't change the16

argument any, and our having to write conclusions of17

law, findings of fact and your making the decision.18

But I hear your point, I think it's well19

taken that to the extent that this Board is not going20

to deny an applicant prior to the close of their case,21

my motion for denial at this point is not going to22

carry the day.23

I would love to give the rest, but I will24

defer to the Board. If that's the position that25
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you're at, I should really save the Board's time and1

stop here.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good. That would be my3

recommendation. Mr. Zaidan, did you have other4

opinion?5

MEMBER ZAIDAN: If I understand the6

situation correctly, I guess we're kind of like -- I7

guess what the intent was, at the beginning of a8

criminal trial, for the prosecutor to get up and say,9

"There is no need to have a trial because this person10

is guilty." I understand the point and where he's11

coming from, but we're the ones who have to determine12

whether or not the tests have been made and we have13

been collecting evidence for quite some -- well,14

testimony, I should say, for quite some time and I15

don't see how dismissing it or -- what did you amend16

the motion to?17

MR. JOHNSON: Denying it.18

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Denial? That's19

essentially what you are trying to do being a party in20

opposition. So I don't -- I guess what I'm saying is21

I'm not really clear what stance we are at here, but I22

think we need to wrap up the hearing so that we can23

deliberate on the testimony and make a decision on May24

6th.25
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CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Others?1

MEMBER ETHERLY: I will agree with you,2

Mr. Chairman. I think it probably would be3

appropriate for us to move forward. Mr. Johnson4

summarized it accurately. I mean, what you were5

looking for was a summary judgment motion which, as6

you said, would have just cut the case in half,7

saying, "I don't even have to put my case on because8

they didn't meet the test." I think that would have9

been a hard motion to make even if we had taken it at10

the appropriate time, but I think you said the key11

message here, which is, at this particular juncture in12

the proceedings, it's probably just appropriate to13

continue moving forward and get to closing and then14

just move to decisionmaking.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Very well. Let's move16

on. Mr. Johnson, we look forward to seeing all of17

that in your briefings to the Board, findings of facts18

and conclusions -- I think that's an absolutely19

appropriate way to articulate those -- as well as the20

other information that you presented in your case.21

With that, we thank you.22

Mr. Nunley, I will turn it over to you.23

We have closings on your part. Also, my recollection24

is that you are not presenting any rebuttal witnesses;25
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is that correct?1

MR. NUNLEY: That's correct.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. How long do you3

need to do your closing?4

MR. NUNLEY: It shouldn't take any longer5

than 15, 20 minutes.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Interesting. Okay.7

MR. NUNLEY: Oh. And Mr. Ellington will8

give a closing right after mine, different issues, but9

related.10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Good. We will call it11

two parts of one closing.12

MR. NUNLEY: Very good. The applicant is13

before the Board -- oh, I'm sorry. I did make copies14

for the Board, if you would like to have those.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent.16

(Pause.)17

MR. NUNLEY: All right.18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: You can begin when you19

are ready.20

CLOSING REMARKS BY THE APPLICANT21

EDGAR NUNLEY22

MR. NUNLEY: Good afternoon, Mr.23

Chairperson, members of the Board, staff. The24

applicant is before the Board seeking special25
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exception under the provisions of section 214.1 to1

continue the use of an existing parking lot at 19022

Vermont Avenue, Northwest.3

The applicant seeks this relief because4

the existing building has no provision for off-street5

parking. The building occupies 89 percent of the6

site, making it physically impossible to provide open7

parking on the site. It is structurally impractical8

to provide parking within the building.9

The Arts Overlay prohibits curb cuts on U10

Street, Northwest. The property abuts the Black Civil11

War Veterans Memorial to the east and developed12

residential property to the south. The only available13

access point would be through the narrow twelve-foot14

alley west of the property. This is not a viable15

option. The building is a six-story masonry-and-steel16

structure that would require massive engineering to17

safely modify the building for a parking garage. In18

its current state, the ground floor could not19

structurally support a parking garage. Alternatively,20

construction of an access ramp to the basement would21

be difficult, if not impossible, given the limited22

space available in this alley for heavy equipment and23

materials.24

The parking spaces are accessory to The25
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Most Worshipful Prince Hall Grand Lodge located at1

1000 U Street, Northwest. The building was built2

prior to the off-street parking requirements.3

Off-street parking was not required and none was4

provided. The result is a building containing 64,8565

square feet of gross floor area without access to any6

accessory parking.7

As previously shown, even after8

application of the 25 percent Metrorail reduction, the9

building would still require 112 accessory spaces if10

built today. Clearly the regulations recognize that11

there is a need for off-street parking even if the use12

is within close proximity to a subway. The lot was13

established in 1974 as a partial remedy to the lack of14

accessory parking spaces.15

In order to obtain special exception16

relief, we are seeking variance from the distance and17

proximity conditions of sections 214.3 and 214.418

respectively. The applicant submits that it meets the19

test for the variance due to the extraordinarily and20

exceptional condition presented by the age of the21

building and present development in Square 333.22

Section 3103.2 relating to variances.23

The existing lodge does not comply with24

the conditions of section 214.3 in that it is not25
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located in its entirety within 200 feet of the1

principal building. An exceptional situation arises2

from the fact that the lot has existed in its current3

location since 1974. It has a long and successful4

history of use. There have been no documented5

complaints regarding its existence or operation. The6

lot is paved, striped, and has wheel stops in place to7

protect the public space and neighboring properties.8

The owner is in the process of improving the site to9

fully comply with current requirements. The northern10

edge of the lot is approximately 225 feet from the11

rear of the principal building. The distance to the12

end of the lot is approximately 285 feet. There are13

no undeveloped properties that are entirely within 20014

feet of the principal building. The lot cannot15

reasonably be moved to accommodate this requirement.16

An exceptional and undue practical difficulty would17

result if the lodge is asked to abandon or move this18

longstanding amenity. The applicant will lose the use19

of the only accessory parking location available in20

this square and the community would suffer.21

The existing lot is not contiguous to or22

separated only by an alley from the existing Grand23

Lodge as conditioned in section 214.4. There are no24

properties contiguous to or immediately west of the25
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building -- contiguous to or separated only by an1

alley that can be acquired to meet the requirement of2

section 214.3.3

Immediately west of the building is the4

Black Civil War Memorial and the Metrorail station.5

There is no possibility of acquiring this land. The6

building is abutted to the south by a series of7

residential row dwellings. Even if they could be8

acquired, at least three of these dwellings would have9

to be demolished to provide a comparably sized parking10

area. In addition, existing street parking would be11

reduced by the size of the new curb cut that would be12

required for access.13

The only other access option is through14

the narrow twelve-foot alley in the rear. This option15

would not reasonably serve the applicant or the16

community that must share that alley.17

There are no other properties contiguous18

to the principal building. The building abuts a19

twelve-foot alley to the west. The commercial20

property across the alley is fully developed and21

actively in use.22

The properties beginning 80 feet south of23

U Street that are within the prescribed 200-foot24

radius are zoned R-4 and developed with row dwellings.25
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Again, even if they could be acquired, the lodge1

would have to demolish at least three such residential2

properties to provide a comparably sized parking3

facility.4

A special exception is a use that is5

pre-deemed compatible with other uses within the same6

zoning district. The Board's discretion in reviewing7

an application for special exception is limited to a8

determination of whether the applicant has complied9

with the enumerated conditions for special exception10

relief. If the applicant meets its burden, the Board11

ordinarily must grant the application. The two cases12

that I cite are Washington Ethical Society v. D.C.13

Board of Zoning Adjustment, 1980; and Stewart v. D.C.14

Board of Zoning Adjustment, again 1980.15

The applicant submits that it has met the16

test for variance from conditions 214.3 and 214.4.17

The report from the Office of Planning indicates18

agreement. The record shows that the proposal meets19

the conditions of 11 DCMR section 214.2 and 214.520

through 214.8, which are specifically designed to21

minimize impact on neighboring properties.22

The detailed traffic report submitted by23

O.R. George & Associates clearly indicates that there24

is a pressing need for parking in the area and that25
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there would not be any negative impact from the1

continuation of the subject lot.2

While the report alludes to a somewhat3

restricted field of view upon exiting the lot, there4

is no evidence that this condition has caused or will5

cause any accident or incident during operation of the6

lot. Nevertheless, the applicant has committed on the7

record to continue to alert its tenants and membership8

of this potential hazard.9

It should be noted that the Department of10

Transportation has only noted one traffic accident in11

the general vicinity of the parking lot in the last12

three years. There is no indication that the accident13

was a result of anyone entering or exiting the lot.14

In response to community concerns, the15

applicant has requested additional road signs to16

further minimize the potential for traffic problems.17

The report from the Department of Transportation18

supports the traffic analysis submitted by the19

applicant.20

The lot has operated for nearly 30 years21

without registering a substantiated complaint. The22

applicant has made numerous attempts to work with the23

opposition in mitigating any perceived impact that24

might result from the continued operation of the lot.25
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The existing lot is small and woefully inadequate to1

meet the needs of the lodge, but the proposal to2

expand the lot was abandoned in deference to community3

concerns.4

The lodge has met with community leaders5

in an attempt to resolve their issues. The ANC has6

indicated by vote that it would support the7

application if the applicant could reach an agreement8

with the Westminster community organization. The9

applicant initiated a dialogue to that end.10

Unfortunately, some members of the opposition want the11

lot closed, period. Even so, the applicant has12

responded proactively to suggestions and complaints13

regarding the potential for adverse impact voiced by14

the opposition.15

Although it has never been the intent of16

the applicant to abandon the existing parking spaces17

in favor of alternate parking arrangements, in order18

to provide accommodation for its tenants, members and19

guests, and to mitigate the potential for parking20

overflow into residential neighborhoods, the applicant21

has responded proactively to suggestions proffered by22

the community for the provision of additional parking23

at nearby businesses.24

Many of the available lots are in the Arts25
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District Overlay and restricted -- and are restricted1

by the regulations as to when they may share their2

accessory parking lots. In addition, the applicant3

has not yet been able to reach an agreement as to when4

accessory spaces may be made available exclusively to5

the applicant. This will be an ongoing process.6

The applicant has met the burden of proof7

to allow variance from the conditions stated in8

sections 214.3 and 214.4. The Office of Planning's9

supplemental report supports this contention. The10

applicant supports the conditions recommended by the11

OP report and requests approval of the application.12

I would like turn it over to Mr.13

Ellington.14

CLOSING REMARKS ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT15

BY JOHN ELLINGTON, JR.16

MR. ELLINGTON: Good afternoon, Mr.17

Chairman and Board members. I certainly appreciate18

the opportunity to give this Part 2 closing remarks on19

behalf of The Most Worshipful Prince Hall Grand Lodge.20

My name is John Ellington, Jr. I'm the current past21

grand master of The Most Worshipful Prince Hall Grand22

Lodge. I'm serving as a representative of the Grand23

Lodge and where The Most Worshipful Prince Hall Grand24

Master, Aaron Jordan, presides.25
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The Prince Hall Grand Lodge is one of the1

oldest fixtures in the Washington, D.C.2

African-American community. Most importantly in3

Washington, D.C., the Prince Hall Grand Lodge has4

remained a permanent voice in the community since the5

1930s, spanning throughout the 1960 riots, through6

Vietnam, the 1990s and still standing today.7

The Prince Hall Grand Lodge is the meeting8

place for over 5,000 members, both men and women.9

Sixty-four percent of the membership is 56 years10

older.11

During the acquisition of several pieces12

of property, the Grand Lodge opened its parking lot in13

1974. Over the years, the parking lot has served as a14

useful addition to the Grand Lodge. The Grand Lodge15

was granted a special exception to use the property as16

a parking lot. Shortly thereafter, the Grand Lodge17

renewed its occupancy permit as required. Due to an18

oversight among our volunteers in the Grand Lodge, our19

occupancy permit with a special exception status was20

not renewed. Although we continue to pay our D.C.21

taxes, we did not have a valid use permit. As soon as22

we discovered our error, the Grand Lodge reapplied so23

that we could comply with the D.C. guidelines.24

The Grand Lodge parking lot is a necessity25
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to the membership. It is needed as assistance to the1

elders of the Grand Lodge as well as tenants and2

leadership of the Grand Lodge.3

We hope all parties concerned recognize4

our dedication to the BZA hearing process as evidenced5

by our dedication to redevelopment and community6

acceptance of our parking lot. The Grand Lodge has7

made strives to improve the overall appearance of our8

property. With the aid of a federal grant, the Grand9

Lodge was able to launch the restoration of the main10

headquarters located at 1000 U Street, Northwest. The11

Grand Lodge continues to finance redevelopment and12

revitalization efforts, including the parking lot.13

We planted much needed shrubbery which,14

unfortunately, has been stolen. We have continued to15

talk with the Advisory Neighborhood Commission 1B and16

the Westminster Neighborhood Association in an attempt17

to negotiate an agreement between all parties, and we18

have contacted officials in the D.C. Metropolitan19

Police Department, the Office of Planning, the20

Development Review of Historical Preservation Office,21

and the Department of Transportation to ensure that we22

have fulfilled all requirements associated with23

operating the parking lot.24

We are compelled to provide you with our25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

187

sense of what the negative impact would be if the1

parking lot were not there. Often, community2

activists fail to consider such impact on neighborhood3

citizens. There would be an increase parking in4

residential streets by our members, tenants and the5

Grand Lodge leadership, both during the week and on6

the weekends. This would impose a hardship on our7

neighbors which we believe is unnecessary. The Grand8

Lodge would be unable to designate any parking to9

public use as we do currently. Charitable operations10

within the neighborhood, such for blood drives and11

other things, would no longer be possible, and the12

convenience and deference we extend to our senior13

citizens would for impossible to continue if no14

parking were available to them.15

The Grand Lodge has received positive16

feedback from the Department of Transportation and the17

Office of Planning associated with the studies they18

have undertaken relating to the parking lot. The DOT19

has stated that there are no issues of concern which20

would cause them to recommend against the special21

exception. The Office of Planning also issued a22

favorable report associated with our request.23

We commit to meet any and all requirements24

related to renewing our certificate of occupancy. We25
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shall not permit a situation such as we find existing1

now to occur in the future. The Grand Lodge now2

understands the regulatory requirements associated3

with our parking lot and we will be in compliance. We4

understand the impact the parking lot has on the5

surrounding community and we will be issuing a6

proclamation to our membership underscoring our7

commitment to work with ANC and WNA. We will solicit8

their input on further improvement which could be made9

to the parking lot. The quality of the community is a10

priority to the Grand Lodge.11

In closing, we, The Most Worshipful Prince12

Hall Grand Lodge, have faith that you will deliberate13

and decide our case fairly given the interests of all14

parties concerned. We pledge that if the special15

exception is approved, we will do everything within16

our power to increase harmony and a spirit of17

cooperation in the neighborhood.18

In addition, we will remain in contact19

with the staff of the Office of Zoning to continue our20

education process and to ensure full compliance with21

the D.C. municipal regulations in regard to our22

property.23

Once again, thank you very much, and I24

look forward to a positive outcome of your25
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deliberation.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you both very2

much.3

One point of clarification. I know it's a4

mouthful to keep saying "special exceptions and5

variances."6

MR. NUNLEY: And variances.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: But you are both aware8

because you both made references to special exception9

and then variance is a different part, but we're going10

for all of that.11

MR. NUNLEY: Yes, sir.12

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Good.13

Let me ask a quick question, and I'm14

stepping out a little bit here, but we do have all the15

parties. Mr. Nunley, in your closing, you indicated,16

first of all, the paragraph that has the court citing17

for special exception. You also kind of roped in a18

variance, which those cases, if I'm not mistaken,19

actually go to if the -- the burden for a special20

exception is presented at the Board, it's basically21

bound to grant the relief to that, but that doesn't go22

necessarily to variances.23

MR. NUNLEY: No.24

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: My question goes to25
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this, however. If a variance is required under 214 --1

which we have established it is -- .3 and .4 for2

distance, based on the fact that the parking lot is3

compatible with the other uses within that distance as4

a set part of the regulation, in order to have relief5

from that distance of which you need the variance,6

does that, in fact, make it a use variance rather than7

an area variance?8

MR. NUNLEY: I say no because the use, as9

you said, is deemed compatible under the conditions,10

so when you get to the conditions, we're not talking11

use anymore; the conditions only support the use that12

would be allowed under special exception.13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, I guess that's my14

question. Is the use compatible if it goes beyond the15

area which it's designated?16

MR. NUNLEY: If the test for variance has17

been carried, then I would say yes. This is, in my18

mind, clearly an area variance in that it deals with19

distance as opposed to use.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Thank you.21

Mr. Johnson, same question. If a variance22

for the distance requirements, of which we need a23

variance from 14.3, 14.4, if you are required to get a24

variance from the distance of which it's outlined,25
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does that create, in fact, a use variance for this1

use?2

MR. JOHNSON: First of all, I'm confused,3

but given that confusion -- I've got to preface that4

with that -- I'm further confused by Palmer v. Bza, a5

1972 case where the court of -- where the Board then6

determined a distance variance of something greater7

than 800 feet because it was for a public hall, if I8

remember right, that particular variance request, and9

the court there said that request, that variance10

really was a hybrid, both use and variance.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right.12

MR. JOHNSON: I'm not sure where that puts13

us.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. Well, you bring15

up an interesting point, and that is hybrid. I think16

the Board is well aware of the court's ruling on that17

and I believe there are other court cases to look to18

for that.19

Let me ask you this question, then. The20

existing site where the parking lot is proposed to be21

if given this relief is within the R-4 District and22

surface parking is allowable in the R-4 District. Is23

that your understanding, Mr. Johnson?24

MR. JOHNSON: You're saying that surface25
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parking is allowable. Well, accessory parking is1

allowable, if that's the question.2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: In the R-4.3

MR. JOHNSON: I would think that it is.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: If that's the case,5

then is this a use that is compatible with the zone in6

which the lot finds itself?7

MR. JOHNSON: I can't find the legal hook8

that says it's not, but I'm convinced on a practical9

sense that it is not a use that's permitted, and this10

is why. Two-fourteen talks about accessory parking,11

and I have to jump at this one, but I'm guessing they12

are assuming residential accessory parking, which we13

think of one spot, two spots or whatever. But here,14

we seem to be turning accessory parking in a 115

through 5 zone, R-1 through 5, we seem to be turning16

it on its head and saying, "We're going to use this17

accessory parking that's permitted in R-1 through 518

for a commercial place that's going to park 20 cars in19

one lot." It doesn't seem to me that accessory20

parking contemplated that. But reading the provisions21

of all of 214, I don't see anything that says it's22

excluded.23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay.24

MR. NUNLEY: I would like to add, if I25
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might.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Hold on just a second.2

We're going to do a little round robin here.3

Does the ANC have an opinion on this4

question?5

MR. SPALDING: No.6

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Mr. Nunley.7

MR. NUNLEY: The thing I would like to add8

is actually a response to your question, is surface9

parking compatible in the R-4 zone? I'm going to say10

yes because if you look at section 213, which relates11

to commercial parking lots, that's also deemed12

compatible with the R-4 zone by virtue of special13

exception relief.14

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And 213 starts with the15

R-1 zone.16

MR. NUNLEY: Yes.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Which is the lowest,18

and 213.1 actually says use as a parking lot shall be19

permitted as a special exception --20

MR. NUNLEY: Exactly.21

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- which would deem the22

use compatible with a residential zone. Interesting.23

Interesting discussion.24

Okay. Any other clarification, follow-up25
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by the Board members?1

MEMBER ZAIDAN: I would just add, just to2

kind of, I don't know, weigh in, and Chair, if you3

wouldn't mind, if you think I'm wrong in this, but in4

the R-4 zoning, and this is going to Mr. Johnson's5

testimony about what the intent of accessory is, it is6

my understanding that hospitals and I know schools for7

a fact are all compatible in a residential zone and I8

am sure larger parking lots would be contemplated for9

those type developments. So I don't think it is10

necessarily restricted to one or two spaces for11

accessory parking facilities for just residential in12

that zone. Would you disagree or agree?13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: The example that you14

are setting is if you built something that was15

allowable in the R-4 or whatever residential zone --16

let's say a hospital without getting into merits of17

whether that is appropriate or not --18

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- and they built it20

all on the same site?21

MEMBER ZAIDAN: No, no, no. If I22

understood his argument, it was, all right, the23

general intent of the residential zoning is for24

residential uses. Nobody is going to have a 20-space25
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parking lot for residential use, so this is going1

beyond the intent of the residential zoning.2

I was taking exception to that in the3

sense that that's not necessarily -- residential4

zoning isn't necessarily restricted to just5

residences; it's also community based facilities and6

schools that would have an intent to have a bigger7

size parking lot. Did I understand your argument8

correctly?9

MR. JOHNSON: I think you do.10

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Okay.11

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Right. I think you12

understand the difficulty does come in that the zoning13

regulations then stipulate if it's a stand-alone14

accessory parking lot, that it needs to be somewhat15

continuous to a commercial, which moves it more16

towards the commercial, which speaks more towards the17

larger number of parking spaces.18

MEMBER ZAIDAN: Right.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. All right.20

Any other clarifications?21

MEMBER ETHERLY: Mr. Chair, this may be an22

obvious question, but one of the things that I look to23

hear from closing is some assistance in terms of24

helping me understand what's the framework I need to25
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be thinking about as I look at this case. It's a1

question as much for my colleagues, maybe, but also I2

will direct it to Mr. Nunley.3

Is it your sense that this is a two-part4

question -- when you look at the relationship between5

the special exception and the variance, you can't have6

the special -- is it your understanding or would you7

agree with the statement that you cannot have the8

special exception if you do not get the variance9

relief first?10

MR. NUNLEY: That is correct.11

MEMBER ETHERLY: Okay. Thank you.12

That's all I have, Mr. Chair. Thank you.13

MR. NUNLEY: If I might just add something14

to what Mr. Zaidan said earlier, it's true that15

residential zones are not only restricted to16

residential uses. The church is the first example17

that comes to mind, but this lodge was also first18

allowed in the R-4 zone.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: The lodge is also20

allowed in the R-4.21

MR. NUNLEY: The lodge is allowed in the22

R-4 --23

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: What is the use that24

the lodge would come under?25
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MR. NUNLEY: Lodge.1

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I see.2

MR. NUNLEY: No, it's quite specifically3

delineated in the regulations.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: And it's lodge, and5

club house also is in that.6

MR. NUNLEY: Yes.7

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes. Okay.8

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Mr. Chairman?9

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.10

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Just a kind of11

observation on the closing remarks of Mr. Ellington.12

On page 3, number 3, you talk about charitable13

operations within the neighborhood such as blood14

drives and youth car washes that take place on the15

lot, and I would just like to inquire, is this16

compatible in the zone and is it -- are the Masons17

able to pass the use to charitable operations for this18

purpose and would the community consider that a19

benefit to the neighborhood? If I were reading some20

closing remarks, I would want to have some judgment on21

the parties about that.22

MR. ELLINGTON: The Masons have always in23

our charitable endeavors included the community in24

what we are doing, blood drives -- I mean, we have25
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hundreds of things that we are doing. We go out, we1

have put fliers in the community, you know, inviting2

them to these type things and certainly they are3

definitely invited to this. Is that what you're4

asking?5

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Well, I'm6

asking -- I really would like to know how many of7

these blood drives and youth car washes you do in a8

year's time, because you are looking for a special9

exception to establish a parking lot.10

MR. ELLINGTON: Okay.11

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: It doesn't say12

that you are establishing the parking lot to also13

carry on other activities in that parking lot.14

MR. ELLINGTON: Yes. The blood drive and15

other activities are for the participants that are16

coming up, you know, to participate in the blood17

drive, and our car wash, you know, we put that in18

there because our youth -- we have a very outstanding19

youth program and sometimes they want to raise money20

and sometimes they may get out there and wash the21

cars. But it's not -- and that's maybe once or twice22

a year for that. But we have three blood drives a23

year and it's for blood drives, but we also have other24

activities, fundraisers for charity that probably25
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require people to come in.1

MR. NUNLEY: The grand master has just2

informed me that in these instances, the parking lot3

is used only for parking of the vehicles. The blood4

drive itself takes place within the lodge building.5

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: That wasn't6

clear.7

MR. ELLINGTON: Okay. That's why I asked.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I think I made that9

assumption that it was inside, but that's a good10

clarification.11

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Well, thank you12

for that --13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I would hate to have14

those beds out on a rainy day.15

(Laughter.)16

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Well, we could17

also interpret it as a van operation in your parking18

lot with people coming to the van all hours to donate19

blood.20

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Well, it's an21

interesting point, where Ms. Renshaw is going, because22

we actually see cases where parking lots are used for23

other uses not necessarily accessory to the parking24

lot primary use. Now, what I'm taking in, anything25
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that the lodge might be doing would clearly be1

accessory to the lodge's program and functioning. But2

Ms. Renshaw is hitting on a very important --3

MR. NUNLEY: Yes, it is.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: -- and larger issue for5

this Board. But I think with that clarification, Ms.6

Renshaw, are you understanding?7

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Yes.8

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Okay. Not planning any9

flea markets or anything like that? Very well.10

Anything else? Mr. Parsons, yes.11

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Mr. Ellington,12

seemingly 25 hours ago in these proceedings, I'm13

guessing, you and I had a brief dialogue about the14

future use of this parking lot from a land use15

standpoint and you said you were thinking about those16

kinds of things, and we kind of let it drop at that17

point.18

Do you see this as a perpetual need of the19

lodge or do you feel that you're going to convert this20

property to some other purpose in the future?21

MR. ELLINGTON: Let me kind of say this.22

Every two years, we change administration and in our23

changing of administration, we put some things down24

there that must be done by the change. What I foresee25
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is that, you know, just to have a parking lot there1

for the next 20 years just doesn't make any sense.2

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: No, it doesn't to3

me, either.4

MR. ELLINGTON: You have prime property in5

that area, it's building, it's growing, and we are6

taking a very hard look at that, because we have to7

start acting. As has been stated, we have renovated8

our lodge to bring it up to standard in excess of over9

a million dollars. We have a house that we have just10

renovated next to the parking lot to bring everything11

up to standard to beautify the area.12

So yes, what we see here is that it's a13

possibility that that land can be developed and still14

maintain the parking lot. We spoke with, last year,15

to a developer who says that they can put dwellings on16

top and then have some parking under it, and they said17

that was viable. So we are looking at developers and18

developing that land appropriately. We will certainly19

be looking for input from the community as to what --20

we also, in Fort Lincoln New Town, we are putting up a21

senior citizen building, 126 units, but what we can22

do, though, now that we have -- this has kind of23

opened our eyes. We can maybe start looking at24

something like that. We just don't know, but we do25
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plan to do something.1

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Do you think five2

years is a fair period of time to work through those3

kinds of --4

MR. ELLINGTON: I would think five years5

is a fair period of time for a plan, you know, to6

start, you know, develop a plan and what to do. As7

you know, to develop something that extensive, it8

costs a lot of money.9

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Sure.10

MR. ELLINGTON: And certainly we have to11

look into that area, and five years time, we probably12

could come up with a plan as to which way we are13

going.14

COMMISSIONER PARSONS: Okay. Thank you.15

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Any other last16

questions?17

(No response.)18

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: If not, then I can19

thank you all for your continued participation and20

patience. I appreciate your availing yourselves to21

coming down here this afternoon and I would direct and22

instruct all of you to get outside because it's a23

gorgeous day. But before you leave and before I24

actually adjourn the afternoon session, let us25
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reiterate, I will take any questions of schedule and1

requirements for submission at this time.2

Also, I would like to have -- I know3

Westminster and the ANC and Office of Planning -- I4

don't know ANC -- did submit proposed conditions on5

this. I don't have my full file here -- actually, I6

do, but I'm not going through the entire thing --7

whether the applicant had submitted proposed8

conditions. But be that as it may, the Board will9

accept from all parties proposed conditions as we have10

heard the last bit of conclusions and testimony. So11

we would look for that, as well as Ms. Bailey is going12

to run through the other requirements at this point13

and the dates for which they should be submitted.14

MS. BAILEY: The findings of fact and15

conclusions of law are to be filed by April 29th by16

the parties, and the parties are the applicant, the17

Westminster Neighborhood Association, and Advisory18

Neighborhood Commission 1B, and the Board will19

consider a decision on March 6th, 2003, and as you20

indicated, Mr. Chairman, the Board would also accept21

proposed conditions from the parties.22

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Excellent. Just for a23

quick clarification, May 6th is decision date, which24

we're all aware of.25
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Great. Anything else? Yes?1

MR. ELLINGTON: She did say March?2

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: May.3

MS. BAILEY: May. I'm sorry.4

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: The 6th of May, 2003.5

We're going back in time.6

Any other clarifications? Everyone's7

confident on what's expected? Very good.8

With that then, please --9

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Mr. Chairman?10

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Yes.11

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Mr. Chairman,12

were you adjourning?13

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: I'm so sorry.14

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Without me15

having the last word?16

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Indeed.17

(Laughter.)18

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: I can't resist.19

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: After all, I'm looking20

forward to further events that are not out here in21

public. But Ms. Renshaw.22

VICE CHAIRPERSON RENSHAW: Yes. I just23

wanted to say to all of you that, as the Chair24

announced, today is my last day as a member and vice25



 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

205

chair of the BZA, and it has been a wonderful1

experience. I leave behind about a dozen cases on2

which I have sat but cannot vote, along with a case3

that I had asked to be reconsidered; however, I take4

away a greater understanding of the zoning issues,5

regulations and problems, along with an overview of6

the development activity which is transforming our7

city. My appreciation to my colleagues for their8

lively spirit and dedication to the BZA goes without9

question. And most of all, my thanks to the staff of10

the Office of Zoning, who somehow keep the Board11

focused and informed.12

But I do want to say that I'm not saying13

goodbye. There is undoubtedly many reasons why I14

shall be back. But I would just ask my colleagues to15

stay tuned, stay alert, and always do your best for16

this city and its citizens.17

CHAIRMAN GRIFFIS: Thank you very much,18

Ms. Renshaw. I think that's very appropriate, and I19

think that all the members, myself included, mostly20

myself, will miss your participation and your passion21

for the issues.22

We can adjourn this and get this off the23

record and let these folks go and adjourn to the24

executive board room for more speeches, perhaps, and25
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some festivities of celebration for an excellent1

tenure and great service to this city. Quite frankly,2

you all can go enjoy the day, but this day has been3

dedicated to Ms. Renshaw, and it's beautiful weather.4

So with that, if there is nothing further, I would5

like adjourn the 25 March 2003 afternoon session.6

(Whereupon, at 2:38 p.m., the hearing7

adjourned.)8
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